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Separate financial statements of PROCHEM S.A. paegd as at and for the
period ended 31December 2018

Separate statement of financial position as at 31deember 2018
(all amounts in PLN thousands if not stated othseyi

l\ll\lootfe 31 December2018 31 December2017
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 923 964
Intangible assets 2 121 177
Investment properties 3 0 246
Shares in subsidiaries 4 8 478 8 478
Shares in equity-accounted investees 5
4 502 4502
Deferred tax assets 6 2 205 2 743
Non-current receivables under retained sgodeposits 63 726
Other financial assets 7 38 942 37 032
Total non-current assets 55 234 54 868
Current assets
Inventories 8 717 28
Trade and other receivables 9 27 172 16 894
Amounts due from recipients under contracts 19 5799 2 260
Other financial assets 10 - 130
Other assets 11 795 690
Cash and cash equivalents 1336 18 642
Total current assets 35819 38 644
Total assets 91 053 93512
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 12 2935 3895
Revaluation reserve 13 -343 107
Retained earnings 14 40 230 61974
Total equity 42 822 65 976
Non-current liabilities
Provisions for retirement and similar bergefit 15 612 472
Non-current loans 16 8 450 950
Long-term liabilities due to retained secudeposits 3569 4 067
Total non-current liabilities 12 631 5 489
Current liabilities
Current bank loans 17 3830 -
Trade payables 18 22723 14 283
Amounts owed to recipients under contracts 19 2 863 1913
Other liabilities 20 6 107 5851
Deferred income 21 77 -
Total non-current liabilities 35 600 22 047
Total liabilities 48 231 27536
Total equity and liabilities 91 053 93 512
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (units) 2935 000 3 895 000
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Book value per one share (in PLN) 14.59 16.94
Separate statement of profit and loss
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 roku
(all amounts in PLN thousands if not stated otheswis
Note
No. In 2018 In 2017
Revenues from sale, including : 98 986 49 177
Revenues from sale of services 22 96 936 49177
Revenues from sale of goods and materials 23 2 050 -
Cost of sales, including : -93 051 -52 859
Cost of services sold 24 -91 107 -52 859
Cost of merchandise and raw materials -1 944 -
Gross profit on sales 5935 -3682
General and administrative expenses 24 -7 895 -7 032
Other operating income 25 3236 112
Other operating expenses 26 -794 567
Result on one-off event 27 - 26 773
Results from operating activities 482 15 604
Financial income 28 2035 1589
Finance expenses 29 -975 -2 243
Before tax profit 1542 14 950
Income tax expense: 30 453 2 266
- current tax 2 237
- deferred tax 451 2 029
Profit for the period 1 089 12 684
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 2935 000 3895 000
o ] ] 0.37 3.26
Profit/diluted profit per share (in PLN per one sH)a
Separate statement of comprehensive income
In 2018 In 2017
Profit for the period 1089 12 684
Other comprehensive income, net -157 94
Other comprehensive income that will be reclassifiedprofit 0 0
and loss under certain conditions:
Other comprehensive income that will not be recldiesl to
; ) -157 94
profit and loss:
Actuarial profit (losses) on valuation of provissofor
employee benefits -157 115
Income tax on other comprehensive income 21
Total comprehensive income 932 12778
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (units) 2935 000 3895 000
Total comprehensive income per ordinary share (N Per 0.32 38
one share) ' '
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Separate statement of changes in equity
(all amounts in PLN thousands if not stated othegwis

Revaluation

Retained

Share capital reserve earnings Total equity

Reporting period from 1 January 2018 to 31 Decembe2018

As at the beginning of the period 3895 107 61974 65 976
Net profit of the given period 1089 1089
Repurchase of own shares for redemption 960 23040 24 000
Other comprehensive income (net) -157 -157
Total comprehensive income -960 0 -22 108 -23 068
Other decreases -450 364 -86
As at the end of the period 2935 -343 40 230 42 822

. Revaluation Retained .
Share capital reserve earnings Total equity

Reporting period from 1 January 2017 to 31 Decembe&017

As at the beginning of the period 3895 837 48 727 53 459
Error adjustment - - -388 -388
As at the beginning of the period (upon adjustment 3895 837 48 339 53071
Net profit of the given period - - 12 684 12 684
Other comprehensive income (net) - - 94 94
Total comprehensive income - - 12778 12778
Other decreases - 127 - 127
Other changes - -857 857 -
As at the end of the period 3895 107 61 974 65 976
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Separate statement of cash flows
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018
(all amounts in PLN thousands if not stated othse)vi

ot In 2018 In 2017
Cash flows — operating activities
Before tax profit 1542 14 950
Total adjustments -7 051 16 588
Amortization and depreciation 495 550
Interest and profit sharing (dividends) -1 198 -831
Profit on disposal of property, plant amgiipment 83 5
Loss on investing activity 246 1164
Change in provisions 1248 -305
Change in inventories -689 1670
Change in receivables -13904 22 158
Change in current liabilities except for tmavings and
loans 8271 -7 879
Other adjustments (including deferred incpme 1437 59
Cash provided by (used in) operating activities 5510 31538
Income tax paid 388 -627
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 5122 30911
Cash flows — investing activities
Inflows 1190 1701
Disposal of intangible assets and propergnipand
equipment 4 3
Inflows from financial assets 1186 1698
- in related entities 1186 1500
inflows from disposal of financial assets - 367
dividend received 1069 741
repayment of loans granted 9 -
repayment of interest on loans granted 108 392
- in other entities - 198
repayment of loans granted - 133
repayment of interest on loans granted - 65
Outflows -398 -264
Acquisition of intangible assets and propgptant and
equipment -398 -134
- in related entities - -130
granting a loan - -130
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
792 1437
Cash flows — financing activities
Inflows 11 330 -
Bank loan 3830 -
Borrowings received 7 500 -
Outflows -24 306 -13 951
Acquisition of own shares -24 000 -
Loan repaid - -6 000
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Repayment of bank loans - -7 302

Interest and commission paid ( loan) -130 -415
Interest on loans paid -176 -234
Net cash provided by(used in) financing activities
-12 976 -13 951
Total cash flows, net 17 306 18 397
Increase/(decrease) cash and cash equivalent net
-17 306 18 397
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of theepod 18 642 245
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 1336 18 642

Notes on adopted accounting principles (Policy) aoither explanatory notes to financial
statements

1. Establishment of the Company and principal activity

Company Prochem S.A.(hereinafter called ,ProchepCompany”, ,Issuer” or ,Parent
Company”) seated in Warsaw, 95 topussda Street. The company is registered in the NatiGourt
Register (KRS) by the District Court for the Capfaty Warsaw, XIll Commercial Department of the
National Court Register under KRS number 0000019#3ncipal activity according to Polish
Business Classification (PKD 2007) determines synmtdd2Z — engineering activities and related
technical consulting. According to Warsaw Stock liaage classification Prochem belongs to
construction sector. Prochem S.A. is a Parent Caynpathe Capital Group and prepares consolidated
financial statements. Prochem S.A. was establighedigh transformation of a state-owned enterprise
under the name of Przeglsiorstwo Projektowania | Realizacji Inwestycji Pmagstu Chemicznego
.Prochem”. The notarial deed and Company’s Artidé#ssociation were signed on 1 October 1991.
Duration of the Company is unlimited.

1.1.The Representation Office

In 2013 the Company commenced implementation oéstment project ,Turnkey construction of
system for the production of highly purified pamaffoils, lubricant and cooling greases and model
compounds with the expansion of power complex” alaBus.The request to close the Representation
Office was submitted on 25 May 2018.

1.2.The Management Board and Supervisory authorities ofhe Issuer

As at the date of preparation of hereby separatmfial statements the Management Board of Prochem
S.A. comprises of the following persons:

Jarostaw Gtniewski - President of the Management Board
Marek Kiersznicki - Vice Presid of the Management Board
Krzysztof Marczak - Vice Presitlef the Management Board

The Management Board of Prochem S.A. was appoimyeldesolution No. 16 / X of the Supervisory
Board of Prochem S.A. of June 12, 2018.
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Composition of the Supervisory Board of Prochem S.A

As at the date of preparation hereby of financiatesnents the Supervisory Board of Prochem S.A.
comprises of the following persons:

= Marek Garlaski Chairman of the Supervisory Board

= Karol Zbikowski Vice Chairman of the Supervisory Board
= Andrzej Karczykowski

= Krzysztof Obloj

= Marcin Rdzinski

1.3.Employment

Average employment in 2018 was 183 FTEs, and it 207 FTEs. Level of employment in persons as
at 31 December 2018 was 191 persons, and as at&iniber 2017 was 181 persons.

2. Adopted accounting principles
2.1. Principles of presentation

Separate financial statements was prepared acgotdiinternational Financial Reporting Standards
adopted by European Union.

The separate financial statements consist of ttersent of financial position, the statement offipro
and loss, the statement of comprehensive incorgestiitement of changes in equity, the statement of
cash flows and explanatory notes.

The financial statements was prepared based qgpritingple of the historical cost, apart from:
« Investment properties measured at fair value.

Prochem S.A. is the Parent Entity in the CapitalUprand prepares consolidated financial statements

2.2. Significant accounting principles

When preparing financial statements hereby, theesaoacounting principles and the same calculation
methods were applied that were applied in the s¢pdinancial statements of PROCHEM S.A. for the
year ended December 31, 2017, with the exceptiothefadopted new IFRS 15 "Revenue from
Contracts with Customers" and "IFRS 9 Financialrimeents".

2.3. Estimates made

The preparation of financial statements under IFE@8pted by EU requires using certain accounting
estimates and adoption of assumptions concernitugeflevents. Iltems of the financial statements set
under the estimation are subject to verificatioaiifumstances being base of estimates are changing
as a result of obtaining new information or of peEsging course of events or of acquiring greater
experience. When preparing the financial statemémieby, were applied the same accounting
principles and the same calculation methods whierevapplied in the financial statements of Prochem
S.A. for the year ended 31 December 2017 excemdopted new standards IFRS 15 "Revenues from
Contracts with Customers" and IFRS 9 "Financialrimaents".

Information about the adopted assumptions and tainges relating to estimates made are included in
the following notes to financial statements.

* Note 15 — Liabilities under retirement benefitsy ketuarial assumptions;

* Note 40 — Information on significant proceedingagiag before the court.
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In the applied accounting principles the biggegpaoniance had, apart from accounting estimates, the
professional judgment of the management, whichuarftes the amounts disclosed in the financial
statements. Assumptions of these estimates arel basthe best knowledge of the Management Board
regarding current and future activities and evéntparticular areas of activity. They relate to the
valuation of retirement benefits, the assessmerthefdegree of realization and profitability of ¢pn
term contracts (of gross margin).

2.4. New standards, interpretations and changegublished IFRS and its impact

The International Accounting Standards Board hgsagd new standards to be applied from January
1,2018:
* [IFRS 9 ,Financial Instruments”,
* IFRS 15 ,Revenue from Contracts with Customergl amendments to IFRS 15 explaining
some of the requirements of the standard,
* Amendments to IFRS 2 regarding the classificatind valuation of share-based payment
transactions,
* Amendments to IFRS 4 regarding the applicatio~&S 9 together with IFRS 4,
* Amendments to IAS 40 regarding the rules of trammg to or from investment properties,
» Annual Improvements to IFRS 2014-2016 cycle mshope of further specifying IAS 28 and
IFRS 1,
* IFRIC 22 Interpretation regarding transactiona fioreign currency and remuneration paid or
received in advance.

The above amendments to the standards have besvaggor application by the European Union by
the date of publication of the hereby financiatestgents, with the exception of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15,
will have no impact on the Company's accountingcgand financial statements.

Description of the impact of applying IFRS 9 an®&-15

The company Prochem S.A. retrospectively applied®RS 15 and IFRS 9 standard with effect from 1
January 2018. In accordance with the possibililgvadd by the standard, the Company resigned from
restatement of comparable data. Data as at Dece3ib@017 were prepared based on IAS 39, IAS 18
and IAS 11.

The previously applied selected accounting prirsigbr sales revenue (IAS 18, IAS 11) and financial
instruments (IAS 39) were disclosed in the finahsiatements for 2017.

IFRS 15

The company applies the principles of IFRS 15 tgkimo account the assumptions adopted in this
model. This model assumes that revenue are reaywihen (or in the extent in which) the entity
transfers the control over the goods or servicethéocustomer, and to such amount, to which entity
expects to be entitled. Depending on the meetirdet#rmined criteria, the revenues:

- are distributed over time in a way that refletts implementation of the contract by the entityfam
which entity expects to be entitled.

- are recognized once, in such a time when theraoover the goods or services is transferred & th
customer.

The analysis made by the Company did not show rigmadét of the application of IFRS 15 on the
financial statements prepared in previous years.

To ensure the comparability of data in the statéro&financial position, the following reclassifiians
of data were made as at December 31, 2017.
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Statement of financial position

As at

31 December | Reclassification| As at 31 December
Assets 2017 (in PLN 2017 after restatement

(in PLN thousands) (in PLN thousands)

thousands)
Other assets 2 950 -2 260 690
Amounts due from receivers under agreements 0 2|260 2 260
Equity and liabilities

Deferred income 1913 -1913 0
Amounts owed to receivers due to agreements 0 11913 1913

IFRS 9

At the moment of initial recognition, financial @ss should be classified into one of three categori
« financial assets measured at amortized cost;

« financial assets measured at fair value throughtmr loss; or

« financial assets measured at fair value througaracomprehensive income.

The Group qualifies financial assets to the appatgprcategory depending on the business model of
financial assets management and the charactermdtazntractual cash flows for a given financiadets

Component of financial assets is classified inte dategory of measured on initial recognition at
amortized cost if the following two conditions anet:
. the assets are held within a business model wblgeetive is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and
. its contractual terms give rinse on specifiecedab cash flows which are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding

Component of financial assets is classified in® thategory of measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if:
« the Group’s objective is to hold assets in ordehlio receive cash flows from the contracts as
well as their selling,
* its contractual terms give rise on specified datesash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding

Other financial assets are measured at fair vaharigth profit or loss for the current period.

The impact of the implementation of IFRS 9 on thange in the classification of financial assetatak
January 2018 is presented below.

Classes of financial instruments Classification under IAS 39 Classification under IFRS 9

Financial assets available for sale Availablestle Measured at fair value through profit
or loss

Security deposits under contracts foLoans and receivables Measured at amortized costs

construction

Trade and other receivables Loans and receivables Measured at amortized costs

Loans granted Loans and receivables Measuredatiaed costs

Derivative financial instruments notFinancial assets measured at faiMeasured at fair value through profit
covered by hedge accounting value through profit or loss or loss

PROCHEM S.A. 10
Separate financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
adopted by EU as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018



IFRS 9 did not introduce changes to the classifioatf financial liabilities.

In the scope of hedge accounting, the Company &eisied to continue the existing measurement and
classification methods.

IFRS 9 introduces a new approach to estimatingirtigairment of financial assets. Currently, the
impairment model is based on the calculation ofetgd losses as opposed to the model resulting from
IAS 39, which was based on the concept of lossastiad.

To estimate the expected credit losses in relateorirade receivables, the Company applied the
simplified method allowed by IFRS 9. For the pumpax estimating the expected credit loss, the
Company uses the provisions ratio, which takesaestmunt historical data.

Taking into account the above calculation methoghpldor expected credit losses, the value of
receivables may also be updated individually ireada# the individual assessment of the Management
Board the risk of non-recoverability is significaint particular in relation to:

- receivables from contractors put in liquidatiarbankruptcy

- debts questioned by debtors, and such whenehtdis in arrears, and according to the assegsmen
of the debtor's property and financial situatidre tepayment of the contractual receivable is fnaug
with significant risk.

As a result of individual analysis, in case whespite significant overdue of receivables, the Camgpa
has a credible declaration of the contractor's @atnthe creation of a write-off may be suspended.

The implementation of IFRS 9 did not significantjfect the amounts of write-downs as at 31
December 2018 as well as at 1 January 2018. Dtlettact that the calculated amount of impairment
allowance as at 1 January 2018 in accordance hatlatlopted model of expected credit losses did not
significantly differ from the amounts already renagd in the financial statements as at Decembgr 31
2017, the Company took advantage of possibilitiesiged by in IFRS 9 and in result did not make
restatement of the data of earlier periods, andume of that an adjustment was not made of thalinit
balance of the Company's retained earnings undantplementation of this IFRS.

The company has not decided to early apply thedarals and amendments to standards that have been
published and endorsed for use in the EU, but Inate/et entered into force, and will introduce them
on the date of adoption.

2.5. Standards and interpretations approved by the EUwhich have not entered into force for the
annual periods ended December 31, 2018

IFRS 16 Leases effective from January 1, 2019.

IFRS 16 replaces MSR 1#&asesand interpretations related to this standard. \\atfard to lessees, the
new Standard eliminates the current distinctionvben financial and operating leases. The recognitio
of an operating lease in the statement of finarmaition will result in the recognition of a newsat -

the right to use the leased asset - and a newitljaba liability to make a lease payment. Rightuse

the assets leased will be subject to amortisabanjnterest will be charged on the liability. Tl
result in arising of higher costs in the initiab$éing phase, even if its parties have agreed a fix
annual fees.

Recognition of lease agreements of the lessor milimost cases remain unchanged due to the
maintained division into operating and financiades agreements.

Impact of IFRS 16 on financial statements

At the time of preparing hereby financial statersenhe Company completed work related to the
implementation of the new IFRS 16 standard. Thelémpntation of IFRS 16 was carried out as
follows:
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- analysis of all being executed contracts forchase of services was made, regardless of thenturre
classification, aimed at selecting those contramisthe basis of which the Company uses assets
belonging to suppliers;

— each identified contract has been assessedns tef meeting the criteria for being classifiedaas
lease in accordance with IFRS 16,

- the subject of the made analysis was all findriemse contracts, operating lease contracts, mad a
rental and lease agreements.

The company decided to implement the standard iomaig 1, 2019. In accordance with the transitional
provisions contained in IFRS 16.C5 (b), the newngigles will be adopted retrospectively with
referring the cumulative effect of the initial ajgaltion of the new standard to equity as at Jantary
2019. Therefore, comparative data for the finangmhr 2018 will not be transformed (modified
retrospective approach).

The company will recognize liabilities under leaskated to contracts that were previously classifie
"operating leases" in accordance with the prinsigkIAS 17 Lease. These liabilities will be measur

at the current value of lease payments remainifigetpaid at the date of application of IFRS 16. ther
purposes of implementing IFRS 16 and disclosurgarding the impact of the implementation of IFRS
16, discounting was applied using the marginakegerate of the lessee as at January 1, 2019.

In order to calculate discount rates for IFRS & Company will apply the marginal interest rate
reflecting the cost of financing that would be irred to purchase the leased asset. In order imasti
the discount rate, the Group took into accountféflewing parameters of the contract: type, dunatio
currency and potential margin that it would haveptty to financial institutions in order to obtain
financing.

The implementation of IFRS 16 required some es@msiand calculations to be made that have an
impact on the valuation of liabilities under I€ase

- establishing of contracts covered by IFRS 16,

- determination of the remaining applicable leaseéqa with respect to contracts concluded before
January 1, 2019,

- establishing of marginal interest rates usedgoatint future cash flows,

- indication of useful periods and determinatioranfortization rates for use rights to assets reizegn

as at January 1, 2019.

When applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Compawill apply the following practical
simplifications allowed by the standard:

- the using of one discount rate for a portfolidezEsing agreements with similar features,

- the application of an assessment whether leagegige to burdens in accordance with IAS 37 at th
moment of implementing the standard, as an altemab conducting impairment tests of the lease
assets,

- agreements under operating lease with the rengpildase period of less than 12 months as at 1
January 2019 will be treated as short-term leasing,

- the using of the time perspective (using the Kedge gained after the fact) in determining thaileg
period, if the agreement includes options for ediieq or terminating of the lease agreement.

As at December 31, 2018, the Company had an iredlemff-balance sheet liability due to operating
lease with regard to office lease agreements ancengal. As at December 31, 2018, the nominalevalu
of assets used under lease agreements was PLNA1te@2sand (detailed information is presented in
note 35 of which the amount of PLN 15 684 thousgeldtes to lease agreements in accordance with
IFRS 16 upon excluding short-term lease. For thareafientioned contracts, the Company made a
valuation at the present value of assets used uthdee agreements and recognized as at January 1,
2019 the right to use an asset in the amount of PAM27 thousand, and liability under lease whih t
same value. Off-balance sheet liability under leg$n the amount of PLN 16 024 thousand PLN will
be derecognised. In the case of contracts in wihielCompany acts as a lessor, the applicationREIF
16 will not result in the necessity to recognize #ujustments as at 1 January 2019.

Projected financial results of the implementatidnlERS 16 (applicable only to lease agreements
concluded or amended before January 1, 2019) on:

Statement of financial position as at 1 January9201

- the right to use an asset — property, plant guibenent PLN 14 427 thousand,

- liabilities under lease PLN 14 427 thousand.
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Statement of profit and loss: for the period frodahuary -31 December 2019.

- decrease in service costs by PLN 662 thousand;

- increase in depreciation and amortization by RIOR thousand,

- increase in interest expenses by PLN 260 thousand

Statement of cash flows

- increase in cash flows from operating activitilgsPLN 260 thousand

- decrease in cash flows from financial activitiesHiyN 260 thousand

- decrease in costs due to taxes and fees anides(69) - increase in depreciation 30 - increafse
costs The annual cost under short-term leasesmitunt to PLN 509 thousand.

Other published but not yet endorsed standards amigrpretations do not apply to the Company's
activities or will not affect it:

» Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 regarding the satransfer of assets between an investor and
its associates or joint ventures,

« IFRIC 23 interpretation regarding uncertaintyating the recognition of income tax,

* MSSF 17 Insurance Contracts,

« Amendments to IFRS 9 regarding debt financiagétswith an option of early prepayment, which may
result in the arising of the so-called negative pensation,

* Amendments to IAS MSR 28 regarding long-termrasés that form part of the net investment in the
associate or joint venture,

« Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2Qtlec

* Amendments to IAS 19 concerning changes, redustio settlements of defined benefit plans,

* Amendments of references to conceptual assunypiiolrRS,

* Amendments to IFRS 3 to the definitione of a bass,

« Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 regarding the dedin of materiality.

The above-mentioned standards, with the exceptiolrRIC 23 interpretations and amendments to
IFRS 9, are awaiting endorsement by the EuropeaanUihe Group intends to apply all amendments
in accordance with the date of their entry intaéor

2.6. Remaining accounting principles applied by the Coamy
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment include fixed asaats expenditures on construction in progress which
the entity intends to use in their business opamatin a period longer than one year, and which wil
result in future economic benefits to the entity.

Expenditures on property, plant and equipment ghelincurred investment expenditures as well as
incurred expenses on future supply of machineryipgaent and services relating to production of PPE
(transferred advance payments).

PPE are initially stated at cost. Measurement @fttal recognition:

e Land, buildings and construction are carried aahgsd amount, being its fair value at the date
of revaluation, set by experts, less any subseqgaecumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Fair value willd&teby experts regularly every two years.

e« Other PPE are carried at their cost increased Issiple improvement costs, less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated immgair losses.

Increase in value resulting from the revaluationamid, buildings and constructions is recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in tt@unt in equity -Revaluation reseryeas
revaluation surplus unless it represents the ral@fsa revaluation decrease previously recognined
the statement of profit and loss. A decrease inevatising as a result of a revaluation of landdngs

and constructions is recognized as cost of theg@da the extent that it exceeds any amount preigou
credited to the revaluation surplus relating to shene asset and recognized in other comprehensive
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income. A decrease resulting from revaluation idelliin other comprehensive income decreases the
amount of total surplus arising from the revaluatiecognized in the equity.

Value of PPE designated to liquidation, withdraweoni use as a result of the change of technology or
other reasons, is being revalued by write downtéAdown is recognized in other operating costs.

Expenditures on PPE incurred at a later date a@grezed at their carrying amount when it is prabab
that future economic benefits associated with tiélirflow to the entity, and this cost could beiadily
measured. All other repair and maintenance cosR# are recognized in the cost of the period, in
which they were incurred.

Profit and loss on sale of PPE are set by compahiegevenues from sale with the carrying amount of
the given component of non-current assets and nimed) in the statement of profit and loss. PPE are
subject to depreciation since they are availablei$e. Depreciation allowances on PPE are prowiged
systematic, scheduled allocation of the initialueabver the established useful life of the compan&n
straight line depreciation method is applied.

In the financial statements for the current pedod comparative periods, for depreciation of PRE th
following useful lives are used by the Company:

e Buildings and constructions 10-40 years
* Machinery and equipment 5-12 years
e Vehicles 5 years
* Tools, devices, movables and equipping 5-10 years

The correctness of the applied useful lives, ofrel@ption methods is verified at the end of each
reporting year, and in justified cases is adjusted.

Own land is not subject to depreciation.

PPE in-progress arising for the operating activig, well as for purposes not yet identified, are
presented in the financial statements at their asst recognized impairment losses. The cost of all
items comprises all fees and borrowing costs dagmth in accordance with the applied accounting
principles.

PPE are subject to the impairment tests, if presnise impairment exist, while in case of PPE in
progress, the possible impairment is determinddagt for each balance sheet day. The effectseof th
impairment are recognized in other operating costs.

The component of intangible assets is measurest less any depreciation allowances and any
impairment losses.

Intangible assets, except for the goodwill are ¢peimortized. Amortization allowances of intangible
assets is made by systematic, planned allocatidheoiitial value in the established useful lifiettoe
component. A straight line of depreciation metr®dpplied.

In the financial statements for the current pedod comparative periods the Company applied useful
life period of 3-10 years for amortization of intgiole assets.

The correctness of the applied useful lives, ofreegation methods is verified at the end of each
reporting year, and in justified cases is adjustetie current and in subsequent periods.

Intangible assets are subject to the impairmens tepremises for impairment exist. The effectshd
impairment are recognized in other operating costs.
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Investment properties

Investment property is a property (land or a buaijdor part of a building, or both), which the Compa
treats as a source of rental income or maintaiestduhe increase in value, or in order to berisdin

both of them, and the investment property :

. is not used in operating activities,

. is not offered for sale in the ordinary coursénvkestment activity.

Investment properties are also real estates umastreiction or their adaptation, which are to bedus

the future as investment properties. Gains or foasising from the sale / liquidation of the invaent
property shall be determined as the difference éetwproceeds from sale and the carrying amount of
these assets and are recognized in the statemprdfitfand loss.

Investment properties are initially measured at dtst, including transaction costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are measurddiavalue as defined in the fair value model and i
IFRS 13Fair Value MeasuremeniThe method of valuation is obligatory to all ist@ent properties
unless some investment properties cannot be mehbyrhis method — then, the cost approach is used
until the property is sold.

Profit or loss from changes in the fair value & ffroperty is recognized in the result for the qubiin
which the change occurred.

Change in classification, i.e. transfers to, onfrehe investment property are only made when tisesie
change in use, e.g..:
* commencement of owner-occupation — transfer frorastment property to property, plant and
equipment,
* end of owner-occupation — transfer from propertgnpand equipment to investment property,
» commencement of development with a view to saleansfer from investment property to
inventories,
« commencement of an operating lease to third partyansfer from inventories to investment
property.

The cost of an investment property transferredrop@rty, plant and equipment or to inventoriedss i
fair value as at the date of change in the mettiode.

The difference between the fair value and the aagramount, which arose at the time of transfer to
investment properties measured at fair value:

* PPE - is accounted for as a revaluation in accaearth I1AS 16,

e inventories - is recognized as profit or as losgtie period,
end of construction or development of investmenpprty on own account - as the profit or loss far t
period.

The fair value in accordance with IFRS 13 is sagdrice, which would be received from the salerof a
asset, or which could be paid for the transfer dfahility in transaction made on usual conditions
between market participants at the measurement Neasurement of fair value refers to a specific
asset. Therefore, at measurement at fair valueldte taken into account the features of the agset
market participants would consider such featuregrwhletermining the price of the asset at the
measurement date. Such features include, for exampl

- condition and location,

- any restrictions on the sale or use of the asset.

The impact of individual features is to differ irpmknding on how these features will be taken into
account by the market participants.

Fair value measurement is based on the assumptobthie transaction on disposal of assets is held:
- on the principal market for the asset,
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- in case of the absence of a principal maitket,most advantageous market for the asset. The mos
advantageous market means market that maximiseantbant that would be received to sell the asset
by the seller of the asset, after taking into aot@@nsaction costs and transport costs.

The standard requires the classification of failugameasurements depending on the information
obtained for the purposes of valuation in accordawith the following hierarchy:
» Level 1: quoted exchange prices for identical aseetfor liabilities in the active markets that
are available at the measurement date.
« Level 2: initial data not constituting prices ofuet 1, but are observable either directly or
indirectly.
* Level 3: unobservable data.
IFRS 13 requires disclosures in financial statesefihe scope of required disclosures depends on the
category of fair value measurement (i.e. whetheriricluded in the financial statements or in tioées
only) and on the level of the fair value hierarchithin which the fair value measurements are
categorised.
Disclosures resulting from IFRS 13 concerning Yailue model relate to:
* Reconciliation of fair value at the beginning oé theriod and its value at the end of the period.
* Alevel from the three levels of fair value hiefaycFor investment properties, it will be a level
2 or 3 for which it is required:
- disclosure of the amount of transfer betweenl$efthe reasons for those transfers and the
policy applied by the Group for determining wietsuch a change in levels has occurred),
- description of applied valuation techniques arglts,
- in case of the change in the valuation techniquesd in the fair value measurement,
disclosure of such a change and the reasons fangakch a change.
» If the highest and best use of a non-financial tadgéers from its current use, should be
disclosed the reason for different use of thistasse
* Information enabling reconciliation of classes s$ets and liabilities, which were disclosed at
the separate levels of the fair value hierarchywwéms presented in the statement of financial
position.

Measurement of fair value of the entity's investhmamperty is carried out by an independent expert,
who has qualifications relevant to carrying outuagions of real estate, as well as current expegiém
such valuations in locations where assets of tloeiBare located.

In justified cases, investment properties whosaevahanges by at least 10%, are valued in each year

Leases
The company as the lessee

A lease is classified as a finance lease if subathnall the risks and rewards incidental to owsiep

of an asset falls to the Company Prochem S.A. Compis of the assets under this lease are measured
in the financial statements at the lower of amowetsin commencement of the use: at fair valuet or a
present value of minimum lease payments. Each leagment is divided into the part constituting the
liability and the financial part. The liability ipresented in the balance-sheet in the position ¢Oth
liabilities” with the division into the current ldities (payable up to one year) and non-current
liabilities (payable in the period longer than gm@ar). Finance costs are recognized in the Stateofie
profit and loss. Principles of the amortization alegbreciation of assets being a subject of then&iz
lease and the principles of determining impairmalidwances by assets under finance lease are
consistent with principles applied for the Compangssets. PPE held under lease agreements are
depreciated over the economic useful life of as&dtaight-line method of depreciation is used.

Lease payments under an operating lease and s@mgdgase instalments are recognized in current
costs using straight-line method for the duratibthe lease.
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The company as the lessor

Lease agreements, such as rent agreements acctrditnich the Company retains substantially all the
risks and all rewards resulting from having a leasdject, are ranked among operating lease
agreements. Costs of lease are recognized in ¢wosts while income from the leased object are
recognized in revenues of the period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses indghedoin which they are incurred, except for costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisiticonstruction or production of an asset (PPE, intdeg
assets).
Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when:

1. borrowing costs are incurred,

2. expenditures are incurred for the asset,

3. the activities necessary to prepare the assetsfomtended use or sale are undertaken.

Capitalization of borrowing costs shall be suspeéndethe case of interruption for extended periofis
active investing activity by the entity. Borrowimgsts are capitalized until the designation ofabset
for use or sale.

Investments in subsidiaries, associates or in joientures

The Company measures the value of shares at cesgtithe price of the purchase reduced by any
impairment losses.

The fair value of investment on the date when #ses to be a subsidiary shall be treated as the
purchase price at the moment of initial measurerasfinancial asset.

Inventory —item of Inventory includes - materials, goods, sémghed products, and work-in-process.
Inventories are measured initially at cost. Ashat balance sheet day the measurement of goods and
materials is done with the prudence accountingcipie, that is the categories are valued at thestaf
following - purchase price, the production costi@ net realizable value.

Stocks of slowly-rotating goods and materials aveeced among others by the write-downs created
according to individual evaluation of the realizaptice as at the balance sheet day.

Flows of stocks are done at using the FIFO metHéidst-in", "first-out".

Write-downs concerning inventory and their revesysale recognized in the other operating expenses
and revenues from operating activities.

Loans granted -arise when the entity is transferring financial medirectly to the debtor, and is not
intending to enter the receivable into trade. They classified as current assets, provided the iflate
their maturity does not exceed 12 months from thlrice sheet day. Loans with the maturity date
exceeding 12 months starting from the balance steetire classified as non-current assets. Loans ar
initially recognized at their fair value. The meesuent of loans at later date is done at amoriizet],
using the effective interest rate method, lessiplesenpairment losses.

Receivablesare recognized initially at fair value, and subsadly measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method less impairnadlotvances. Impairment allowance of receivables is
identified when there is objective evidence that ¢ntity will not receive all amounts due according
the original terms of receivables and impairmefdvednce is recognized in other operating expenses.
The amount of write-down is a difference betweandhrrying value of receivable and present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted using ffeetive interest rate.

Discounting involves determining the present valftiiture payments to maturity. For this purpose, w
set an interest rate for calculation purposes @distinterest rate) calculated on the basis ofrttexest
rate established as the average return on bontisangpecified return period and a time remaining to
time of repayment of receivable.
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Cash and cash equivalentaclude cash in hand and on bank accounts, banisitepwith the original
maturity date up to three months and financial tasseasured at fair value through profit or losg an
meeting the requirements of the definition of thelcequivalent. Cash is measured at nominal value.

Non-current assets held- for- sale

Non-current assets held-for-sale are assets mdéerngllowing criteria:

« by the Management is committed to a plan to sell,

« an active program to locate a buyer is initiated,

- an asset is available for immediate sale,

+ the sale is highly probable within 12 months frdassification as held for sale,
« the selling price is rational in relation to thereut fair value,

+ itis unlikely that the sales plan will be sign#ialy changed.

Change of classification is reflected in the rejpgrperiod in which the criteria are met.

Immediately prior to reclassification to the grologld for the sale or the disposal, these assetseare
measured according to accounting principles. Nanec assets held for the sale (excluding financial
assets and investment properties) are recogniztrgk ifinancial statements in lower of two valuds t
carrying amount or the fair value less costs tb sel

In case of increase of value, at a later dateainfvlalue less costs to sell, the income is recghi
however, at the value not higher than previoustpgaized impairment allowance. Upon allocating the
given component of assets as held for sale, tloeledilon of depreciation allowances is stopped.

Dividend payment$o shareholders of the Company is recognized b#itjain the financial statements
of the Company, at the time when a relevant remwiutvas passed at the General Meeting of
Shareholders of the Company.

Provisions -are established in the justified, credibly assessdde. Provisions are created when
obligation (legal or customary) resulted from thestpevents rests on the company, and when it is
probable, that fulfilling of this duty will resuib the necessity of the outflow of financial meaasd the
amount of this liability may be credibly estimated.

Employee benefits the company pays the contributions to the obtigatretirement benefit plan,
depending on the amount of gross wages, whichagl ip accordance with the applicable laws. The
Company has no other retirement benefit plans.

Pursuant to the Remuneration Regulations, emplogé#se Company are entitled to receive one-off
retirement and pension benefits in the event aitation of employment in connection with retirerhen
or pension. The above-mentioned severance payraentsenefits after the period of employment paid
when the employee no longer performs work, theestbe expenses related to them are spread over the
entire period of employment of the employee by mgldurrent allowances for provisions for benefits.
The current amounts of provisions and write-dowres @determined by an external actuarial office
individually for each employee in accordance with tprojected entittement for person” methodology.
The accrued provisions constitute the current edgoewalue of future long-term liabilities of the
Company due to severance payments less the ceaspatted values of future write-downs, which will
be made until the employee is entitled to bensditnfthem.

Actuarial assumptions used for calculations areerdahed based on the Company's historical data,
market data and forecasts. They include demograpidcfinancial indicators, including rotation rates
mortality tables, tables of total disability, indtors of postponing the moment of taking advantzge
pension rights after their acquisition, rates afé@ase in benefits bases, interest rate for disizaun
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The Company recognizes the following componenth®ithange in provisions for severance pay in the
reporting period:

- costs of current employment (current allowaneepgnized in profit and loss

- use of provisions for payment of benefits,

- interest cost reflecting the change in the amadimtrovisions in connection with the passage ikt
recognized in profit and loss,

- actuarial gains/losses arising in connection wlitle materialization in the reporting period of
phenomena reflected by actuarial assumptions ad@tthe beginning of the period and as a result of
updating of assumptions, done at the end of thieghdbeing recognized in full in Other compreheasiv
income due to the fact that all relate to post-@yplent benefits,

- past employment costs occasionally appearingpasiive or negative offsetting of write-offs maide
previous periods and the current period, resultinogh a change in the conditions of benefits (sugh a
change in retirement age) or introduction/restictdf a benefit plan, recognized in profit or Iéssthe
period.

Equity

Equity is recognized in the accounting books byyife, in accordance with principles pursuant gale
regulations and with the Statutes of the Companyitl includes:
» Founding capital — shares capital shown in the namvalue of the issued and registered
shares.
» Revaluation reserve includes:
- the revaluation difference between the faiueadnd the purchase price, less deferred tax -
among others - of buildings and structures, and knd investment property which are
measured at fair value,
- capital arisen from the foreign exchange diffess— from translation of the foreign
operations of Representation Office,
- actuarial gains and losses resulting from thexgha in actuarial assumptions (including those
due to change in discount rate).
» Retained earnings, which include:

0 Spare capital, which is created from the surpludesale of shares above its nominal
value, and from annual write-downs of net profitgl avrite-downs of revaluation of
property, plant and equipment in the previous years

0 Reserve capital which arose from the profit alledab equity,

0 Undistributed profit/loss brought forward and ptdiss) of the current year,

0 Advance payments paid on account of dividends.

Revenues from salesinclude in particular revenue from execution oftcacts of construction services
(general contracting) and design and engineeringcgs. From 1 January 2018, the Company applies
the principles of IFRS 15 taking into account thesuanptions adopted in this model. This model
assumes that revenues are recognized when (oe textbnt to which) the entity transfers controlrove
the goods or services to the client and in the ando which the entity expects to be entitled.
Depending on the meeting of determined criteria révenues:

- are distributed over time in a way that refletts implementation of the contract by the entitytam
which entity expects to be entitled.

- are recognized once, in such a time when ther@loover the goods or services is transferred & th
customer.

Revenues from the contracts for construction sesviggeneral contracting) and the design and
engineering services are determined in proportiathé level of the progress of the service. Thellet
progress of the service is measured by the shacest$ incurred from the date of the contract # th
date of recognition of income in the total costtbé execution of service.

Correctness of calculations of the level of thegpess of service as well as expected the totalresqse
and revenues from the performing of the serviceiffied at the end of each quarter.
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Revenues from sale of goods and materials are mema) in the profit and loss account when the
control over goods has been transferred to thatclie

Income tax— tax burdens include the current taxation by e income tax, and the change in
provisions or deferred tax assets.

Current tax liabilities are established on the dasicurrent tax regulations and the establishgdbie
income. Current tax liabilities for the currentiperand previous periods are included as the Iigbii

the amount, in which it wasn't paid.

Provision under deferred income tax is recognizedhgu the liability method, under transitional
differences between the tax bases of assets duititiegs and their carrying amounts in the finamcia
statements. Deferred income tax is determined utsEirgrates that are actually applicable as at the
balance sheet date. Transitional differences rétatifferent measurement of assets and liabilifoes
tax purposes and balance sheet purposes.

Income tax assets are recognized when is probhbtert future the taxable income will be achieved
that will enable the use of transitional differencBeferred tax assets are recognized separatety fr
tax losses, which could be deductible in the nexsrsy.

2.7.Seasonality

Operational activity of the Company does not haasenal character and is not subject to cycliasen
except for the segment of the general contractimg) i@ental of construction equipment, which are
characterized by a seasonality, which in a largeereéxdepends on weather conditions. Weather
conditions have an impact on the volume of themaes generated in these segments. Lower revenues
are achieved during the winter season, when weatheditions do not allow for execution of some
construction work.

2.8. Transactions in foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initiallgagnized at the exchange rate of the NBP effeetsvat

the transaction date. Balance sheet items of aasetdiabilities expressed in foreign currencies ar
measured at the average NBP exchange rate in dbtte balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising
from the settlement of such transactions and aagryalue of assets and liabilities expressed iaidor
currencies are recognized in the statement oftpanof loss.

2.9. Functional currency and presentation currency of inancial statements

The financial statements is presented in thousafd2olish Zlotys (‘zloty’ or ‘PLN") which is the
functional currency and presentation currency.

The financial result and financial position of tiRepresentation Office are translated using the
following procedures:
« assets and liabilities shall be translated at hsirg rate as at the date of statement of findncia
position,
« revenues and expenses shall be translated at tiiemmexchange rate on the transaction date,
and
« arisen exchange differences shall be recognizethtement of profit and loss.
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3. Explanatory notes to separate financial statementas at 31 December 2018 and for the
period of twelve months of 2018

Note No. 1 — Property, plant and equipment

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Property, plant and equipment, including:
- machinery and equipment
- other PPE

Total property, plant and equipment

923
332
5901
923

964
207
757
964

Property, plant and equipment — ownership structure

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

a) own 923 964
Balance sheet property, plant and equipment, total 923 964
Changes in property, plant and equipment —in 2018
Land -
. L Buildings,
|nc:?dr:?gfthe premises, Machinery Other Construction
e? ctual and civil and Vehicles PPE under Total PPE
upsufrr)uct of engineering equipment progress
land objects

Gross value
As at 1 January 2018 - - 3268 67 3185 - 6 520
Increase (due to) - - 309 - 28 - 337
- acquisition - - 309 - 28 - 337
Decrease (due to) - - -427 1 -287 - -713
- disposal - - -165 - - -165
- liquidation - - -262 - -286 - -548
- other changes - - - 1 -1 - -
As at 31 December 2018 - - 3150 68 2926 - 6 144
Depreciation and impairment
As at 1 January 2018 — accumulated
depreciation - - 3061 67 2272 - 5 400
Depreciation for the period (under) - - -243 1 63 - -179
- increase — depreciation for the period - - 184 194 - 378
- decrease under disposal - - -165 - -165
- decrease under liquidation - - -262 -132 - -394
- other decrease - - - 1 1 - 2
As at 31 December 2018 - accumulated
depreciation - - 2818 68 2335 - 5221
Impairment of PPE - - - - - - -
Net value of PPE as at 31 December 2018 - - 332 - 591 - 923
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Changes in property, plant and equipment —in 2017

Land,
including the ) )
Z?h::t%fal Mat;f::gery Vehicles OPthr Conusrzgtécrtlon Total PPE
upsufrr)uct of equipment progress
land
Gross value
As at 1 January 2017 3348 67 3170 2 6 587
Increase (under) 17 - 112 - 129
- acquisition of property, plant and equipment 17 - 112 - 129
Decrease (under) -97 - -97 -2 -196
- liquidation of property, plant and equipment -97 - -97 -2 -196
As at 31 December 2017 3268 67 3185 - 6 520
Depreciation and impairment
As at 1 January 2017 — accumulated depreciation 2 946 67 2168 - 5181
- increase — depreciation for the period 211 - 201 - 412
- decrease under liquidation of PPE -96 - -97 - -193
As at 31 December 2017 - accumulated
depreciation 3061 67 2272 - 5400
Impairment of PPE - - -156 - -156
Net value of PPE as at 31 December 2017 207 - 757 - 964

Note No. 2 — Intangible assets

Acquired concessions, patents,
licenses and similar assets
including computer software

Total intangible assets

Gross value
As at 1 January 2018 2791 2791
Increase (under) 61 61
- acquisition 61 61
Decrease (under) -69 -69
- liquidation -69 -69
As at 31 December 2018 2783 2783
Amortization and impairment
As at 1 January 2018 - accumulated amortization 2614 2614
Amortization for the period (under) 48 48
- increase (accrued amortization) 117 117
- decrease under liquidation -69 -69
As at 31 December 2018 - accumulated amortizatio 2 662 2 662
Net intangible assets as at 31 December 2018 121 121
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Change in intangible assets —in 2017

Acquired concessions
patents, licenses and similar
assets including computer

Total intangible assets

software
Gross value
As at 1 January 2017 2786 2786
Increase (due to) 5 5
- acquisition 5 5
As at 31 December 2017 2791 2791
Amortization and impairment
As at 1 January 2017 - accumulated amortization 2 476 2476
- increase —amortization for the period 138 138
As at 31 December 2017 - accumulated amortization 2614 2614
Net intangible assets as at 31 December 2017 177 177
Ownership structure
- owned 121 177
Total intangible assets 121 177

Note No. 3 —Investment properties

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Land - 166
Buildings and constructions - 80
Total investment properties - 246

On November 21, 2018, by virtue of the notary agp&ytorium A No. 5893/2018, the Company sold
the investment property. Non-current assets bédiegbisis for the creation of an investment property
were being used in social activities, and thereforgls obtained from sales in the amount of PLN 394
thousand have increased the account of the congpsogial fund.

Investment properties by type

Change in investment
properties
for the period
from 1 January 2018
to 31 December 2018

Change in investment
properties
for the period
from 1 January 2017
to 31 December 2017

Investment property - land

As at the opening balance sheet 166 -
- net increase due to reclassification from propgatant and i 166
equipment
- decrease due to disposal -166 166
As at the closing balance sheet 166 166
Investment property — buildings and constructions i
As at the opening balance sheet 80 -
- net increase due to reclassification from prgpeplant and i 80
equipment
- decrease due to disposal of non-current assets -80 80
As at the closing balance sheet - 80
Total investment properties - 246
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Note No. 4 — Shares in subsidiaries

Shares in subsidiaries

31 December2018

31 December2017

a) in subsidiaries 8 478 9642
Shares, net value 8 478 9642
Write-downs of financial non-current assets 1523 359
Shares, gross value 10 001 10 001

Change in shares in subsidiaries and other entities

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

a) as at the beginning of the period 8 478 9642
- shares at cost 8478 9642
b) decrease (due to) - 1164
- write-down of shares - 1164
As at the end of the period 8 478 8 478

Change in write-downs of shares in subsidiaries

31 December 201¢

31 December 2017

As at the beginning of the period 1523 359
Write-down of shares - 1164
As at the end of period 1523 1523

As at December 31, 2018, the Company performedhalysis which did not show any impairment in

the case of shares.

Note No. 5 — Shares in jointly-controlled entitiesd in associated entities

Shares in jointly-controlled entities and in assoeited entities

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

- Shares — net value

4502 4502
- write-down of shares 708 708
Shares, gross value 5210 5210

Change in shares in jointly-controlled entities andn associated
entities

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

a) as at the beginning of the period 4 502 4502

- shares at cost 4502 4 502
b) at the end of the period, net 4502 4 502
C) write-down 708 708
d) at the end of the period, gross 5210 5210

As at December 31, 2018 the fair value of the tjeenture was PLN 177 923 thousand, of which PLN
88 961 thousand is attributable to the Issuers ate881 December 2017 was PLN 163 200 thousand, of
which PLN 81600 thousand was attributable to tkads.
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Shares in subsidiaries as at December 31, 2018

Item No. a b c d e f g h i j k
Name of the company and its legal fo Type of Date of Value of
Registered officg Scope of the Company relationship Consolidation gaining shares/a{ Total Carrying | Percentagq Share in total
activity (subsidiary, method applied] control/joint cost revaluation| value of | of share number of
associated, with | valuation using| control / date adjustmenty shares capital votes at the
detailing directan¢  the equity of obtaining held General
indirect relations) method, or significant directly Meeting
indication that | influence and (directly or
entity is not indirectly | indirectly)
subject to
consolidation /
valuation under
equity method
Consultancy on
1 PROCHEM INWESTYCJE Sp. z 0. pWarsaw business activity and subsidiary full 22 June 1992 2999 - 2999 100.0% 100.0%
management
subsidiary
Construction designing| indirect(Prochem
2 P.K.l. PREDOM Sp. z 0.0. Wroctaw urban planning, process Inwestycje sp. z 0 full 19 July 2002 177 - 177 81.7% 72.3%
engineering 0. holds 75% of
capital)
Marketing activity,
. providing construction
3 EEOCHEM ZACHOD SP- 2 \warsaw works and design subsidiary full 181'&;"‘;"“ 1061 - 1061  80.0% 80.0%
o services, commercial
activity and forwarding
ELEKTROMONTAZ KRAKOW S.A Assembly of electrical indirzl::ttJISi(clg?(;)c/herr 10 Decembe
4 . | Krakéw installations and Inwest))//cje holds full 2001 221 - 221 85.4% 85.4%
equipment 65.5% of shares)
subsidiary
) L (Prochem 08 April o o
5 PROCHEM RPI Sp. zo.0. Warsaw dmvel’s activity Inwestycje holds full 1998 493 359 134 100.0% 100.0%
3.33%)
Subsidiary
indirectly
6 ELMONT INWESTYCJE Krakow developer's activity (Elektromonta petna 05April.2007 5050 - 5050 92.7% 92.7%
p.zo.o. Krakéw S.A. holds
50% shares)

* Participation in the total number of votes at theneral meeting, and the percentage share indpéal in the subsidiary Elektromont&rakow S.A. were established as at December @8 2
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Shares in subsidiaries - continuation

Ite b
m a c d e f
No
equity, including: Company’s liabilities and provisions tq
; : - liabilities, including: Company'’s receivables, includin
Name of the company ;ﬁz Sohvavrzs ngsét:\a;g;) n Retained eamings Total Sales
(negative Non- assets of revenue
value) profit(loss) | Net profit Non- current Current company
put forward (loss) current Current receivable| receivable
liabilities liabilities s s
1 gEOZ%HEM INWESTYCJE 7 350 3000 - - 4 350 - 367 20 828 19 678 1150 86 - 86 28 178 4036
2 |1 PREDOM Sp.z 9526 600 - 6173 2753 - 563 3124 1860 1264 1282 - 1282| 12650 5358
3 | PROCHEM ZACHOD Sp. 1900| 1600 - - 309 - 17 3 . 3 . - . 1912 .
ELEKTROMONTAZ
4 KRAKOW S.A * 24 783 1208 - 7479 16 096 - 523 12 963 1480 11 483| 18434 - 18 434 37 746 41 387
5 | PROCHEM RPI  Sp.zo.q. 129 600 - - -471 -466 -5 - - - - - - 129 -
6 E'F;MZOONJ INWESTYCIE 7806  8000| - - 104 218 114 14 . 14 . - . 7910 .

* Share in the total number of votes at the genersdting, and the percentage share in the capitéhensubsidiary Elektromonidrakéw S.A. were established as at December 38,a6ér the
settlement of shares purchased for redemption égdimpany Elektromoni&rakéw SA.

** Data from the consolidated financial statementthefCapital Group of Elektromont&rakéw S.A. as at December 31, 2018
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Shares in jointly-controlled entities and associdteompanies as at 31 December 2017

Item . .
No. a b c d e f g h i j k
Name of the company an| Registered Type of Date of Value of
its legal form office Scope relationship Consolidation gaining shares / at Total Carrying Percentage | Share in total
of the company’s (subsidiary, method applied/ control/joint cost revaluation value of of share | number of votes
activities associated, with valuation using the | control / date) adjustments shares capital held | at the General
detailing direct and  equity method, or of obtaining directly Meeting
indirect relations) | indication that entity i$ significant and (directly or
not subject to influence indirectly indirectly)
consolidation /
valuation under equity|
method
; Other electrical : : 13Septembel 0 o o
1 |ITEL Sp.zo.0. Gdynia installations associated The equity method 2005 708 708 42.0% 42.0%
The equity method
(change in the structure
2 | IRYDION Sp. z 0.0. Warsaw | Rentalof real estate] iy, o onirojjeq | OF Shareholding from g 24 March 4502 - 4502 50.0% 50.0%
on its own account subsidiary to a jointly- 2000
controlled entity as
from April 3, 2013)
Shares in jointly-controlled entities and associdteompanies - continued
Item No. a b c d e f
, P P Company'’s liabilities and provisions to liabilities
Company’s equity, including: including: Company’s receivables, including:
Name of the company| Total Sales
] company’s revenue
Net profit an-p_u_rrent Current liabilities Non-'current Cu_rrent assets
(loss) liabilities receivables| receivables
1 ITEL Sp. z o0.0. No data No data No data No data No data No data No data dato No data No data
2 IRYDION Sp. z 0.0. 5622p 3245 126 206 121 062 5144 1517 1517 182 428 6102
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Separate financial statements of PROCHEM S.A. asad for the period of 12 months ended 31 December
2017

Note No. 6 — settlement of deferred income tax

- deferred tax assets

Change in deferred tax assets 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
1. Deferred tax assets as at the beginning of thenod,
recognized in financial result (profit or loss) 3928 6256
a) recognized in financial result 3884 6191
- provisions for operating expenses 391 343
- write-down of receivables 366 391
- unpaid remuneration under contracts of mandatespecific task o 14
contracts
- provision for retirement benefit 72 94
- provision for holiday benefits 228 209
- tax loss 1972 3944
- write-down of inventories 106 106
- discounted cash flow expenses 29 37
- surplus of costs incurred above margin exmecte 607 964
- other 89 89
b) recognized in equity 44 65
- provision for retirement benefits 44 65
2. Increase 3272 1161
a) recognized in financial result 3272 1161
- provision for operating expenses 138 408
- unpaid remuneration under contracts of mandatespecific task 31 o
contracts
- provision for retirement benefits 41 12
- provision for holiday benefits 22 110
- discounted cash flow expenses 39 -
- surplus of costs incurred above margin expecte 3001 607
3. Decrease 2 297 3489
a) recognized in financial result 2 297 3468
- use of provision for operating expenses 415 360
- write-down of receivables - 25
- paid remuneration under contracts of mandadlespecific task o 14
contracts
- provision for retirement benefit 22 34
- provision for holiday benefits 6 91
- use of tax loss asset 1105 1972
- discounted cash flow expenses 29 8
- surplus of costs incurred above margin expecte 607 964
- other, including the settlement of Represeota®ffice 89 0
b) recognized in equity in connection with negativéemporary
differences (due to) ) 21
- provision for retirement benefit - 21
4. Total deferred tax assets as at the end of thenm, including 4903 3928
a) recognized in financial result 4 859 3884
- provision for expenses 114 391

Prochem S.A.
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- write-down of receivables

- unpaid remuneration under contracts of manaatespecific task

contracts
- provision for retirement benefit

- provision for holiday benefits

- tax loss

- write-down of inventories

- discounted cash flow expenses

- surplus of costs incurred above margin expecte

- other, including the settlement of Represeota®ffice

b) recognized in equity in connection with negativéemporary
differences (due to)

- provision for retirement benefit

- provision for deferred income tax

Change in provision for deferred income tax

366
31

91
244
867
106

39

3001

44
44

31 December 2018

366
24

72
228
1972
106
29
607
89

44
44

31 December 2017

1. Provision for deferred income tax as at the beghing of the

period, including: 1185 1590
a) recognized in financial result 1183 1461
- interest accrued on loan 576 533
- revaluation of non-current financial assets 136 136
- revenues under discounted liabilities 42 63
- margin on revalued revenues 429 729
b) recognized in equity 2 129
- revaluation of non-current investment at feilue 2 129
2. Increase 1944 559
a) recognized in financial result of the period undr positive
temporary differences (due to) 1944 559
- interest accrued on loan 130 130
- measurement of revenues, change as at bahpet date 1814 429
3. Decrease 431 964
a) recognized in financial result of the period undr positive
temporary differences (due to) 429 837
- paid interest on loan - 87
- revenues under discounted liabilities - 21
- measurement of income, change as of the balsimeet date 429 729
b) recognized in equity 2 127
- revaluation of non-current investment at feitue 2 127
4. Total provision for deferred income tax as at thend of the
period 2698 1185
a) recognized in financial result 2 698 1183
- interest accrued on loan 706 576
- revaluation of non-current financial assets 136 136
- revenues under discounted liabilities 42 42
- measurement of revenues, change as of thedeatheet date 1814 429
b) recognized in equity - 2
- revaluation of non-current investment at faitue - 2
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2017

Total amount of temporary differences associateth vimvestments in subsidiaries, to which
provisions for tax were created as at 31 Decemb&8 2vas PLN 706 thousand and relates to:
* interest on non-current loans granted to subsgiariPLN 309 thousand
e interest on non-current loans granted to jointlptcolled entities and associated entities —
PLN 397 thousand.

As at 31 December 2017, the total amount of tempadéferences associated with investments in
subsidiaries for which tax provisions were estdgisis PLN 576 thousand and relates to:

* interest on non-current loans granted to subsglariPLN 250 thousand

e interest on non-current loans granted to subsaBariPLN 326 thousand.

Presentation in the statement of financial position

Deferred tax assets

Provision for deferred income tax

Deferred tax assets

Note No. 7 — Other financial assets

Other financial assets

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

4903
-2 698
2205

3928
-1 185
2743

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

a) from subsidiaries indirectly and directly : 18 520 18 319
- non-current loans granted 18 520 18 319

b) from associated entities and jointly-controltadities : 19 090 18 713
- non-current loans granted 19 090 18 713

¢) security deposit securing the bank guarantee lin 1332

Total non-current financial assets 38942 37 032

Loans granted — as at 31 December 2018

+ Loans granted to jointly-controlled company Irydi®p. z 0. 0. seated in Warsaw:
- in the amount of PLN 12 314 thousand, includiagrount of the loan PLN 11 000 thousand,
accrued interest PLN 1 314 thousand. The inteegstis set annually according to WIBOR 6M
rate, the repayment date of the loan with intenest set on 22 September 2031;
- in the amount of PLN 6 776 thousand, includingroant of the loan PLN 6 000 thousand,
accrued interest PLN 776 thousand. The interegt imtset annually at 3% per year, the
repayment date of the loan with interest was sé28eptember 2031;

» Loans granted to subsidiary Prochem Inwestycjez $p.o.:
- in the amount of PLN 3 228 thousand, includiagiount of the loan PLN 3 000 thousand,
accrued interest PLN 228 thousand. The interestisaset annually according to WIBOR 6M
rate effective at the end of every calendar yéwr répayment date of the loan with interest was
set on 31 December 2020;
- in the amount of PLN 15 292 thousand, includemgount of the loan PLN 14 000 thousand,
accrued interest PLN 1 292 thousand. The inteetstis set annually according to WIBOR 6M
rate effective at the end of every calendar yéwr répayment date of the loan with interest was
set on 31 December 2020.

Increase:

+ Accrued interest on loans granted to the jointlgtoolled company Irydion Sp. z o. o.

in the amount of PLN 377 thousand,
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+ Accrued interest on loans granted to subsidiargifem Inwestycje Sp. z 0. 0. —
PLN 304 thousand,

Decrease:
* Repayment of interest on loan by subsidiary Prochesestycje in the amount of PLN 103
thousand.

Loans granted — as at 31 December 2017

+ Loans granted to jointly-controlled company Irydi®p. z 0. 0. seated in Warsaw:
- in the amount of PLN 12 117 thousand, includiagrount of the loan PLN 11 000 thousand,
accrued interest PLN 1 117 thousand. The inteegstis set annually according to WIBOR 6M
rate, the repayment date of the loan with intenest set on 22 September 2031;
- in the amount of PLN 6 596 thousand, includingroant of the loan PLN 6 000 thousand,
accrued interest PLN 596 thousand. The interegt imtset annually at 3% per year, the
repayment date of the loan with interest was s&28eptember 2031;

+ Loans granted to subsidiary Prochem Inwestycjez $p.o.:
- in the amount of PLN 3 222 thousand, includiagiount of the loan PLN 3 000 thousand,
accrued interest PLN 222 thousand. The interestisaset annually according to WIBOR 6M
rate effective at the end of every calendar yéwr répayment date of the loan with interest was
set on 31 December 2020;
- in the amount of PLN 15 097 thousand, includemgount of the loan PLN 14 000 thousand,
accrued interest PLN 1 097 thousand. The inteetstis set annually according to WIBOR 6M
rate effective at the end of every calendar yéwr répayment date of the loan with interest was
set on 31 December 2020

Note No. 8- inventories

Inventories 31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Materials 41 28
Goods 676 -
Total inventories 717 28
Write-down of inventories 575 575

Note No. 9 — Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Trade receivables 30 455 19 360
Write-down of receivables -3 305 -4.189
Net trade receivables, including 27150 15171
- with the repayment period up to 12 months 26 994 14 949
- with the repayment period more than 12 months 156 222
Receivables from taxes, subsidies, custom dutiescil and

h ; - 751
health insurance and other benefits
Other receivables 22 1 368
Write-down of receivables - -396
Net other receivables 22 972
Total receivables 27172 16 894

Trade and other receivables from related entities

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

PROCHEM S.A.
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Trade receivables, including:

- from subsidiaries

- from jointly-controlled entities and assoekhtentities
other, including:

- from jointly-controlled entities and assoeidientities
Total trade and other receivables from relatedientinet

Write-downs of receivables from related entities

Total trade and other receivables from related enties, gross
value

2541
979
1562

2541

2541

8 488
1531
6 957
946
946

9434

9434

Change in write-downs of trade and other receivalas

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

As at the beginning of the period
a) increase (due to)
- provision for trade receivables
b) decrease (due to)
- payments received
- the use of the provision created in the pnesigears

Write-downs of non-current trade and other receivales at the
end of the period

4 585
298
298

1578
111
1467

3305

4529
372
372
316

50
266

4 585

Trade receivables with the period of repayment remaiing since
the balance sheet date:

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

a) up to 1 month

b) above 1 month up to 3 months

¢) above 3 months up to 6 months

d) above 6 months up to 1 year

e) above 1 year

f) receivables overdue

Total receivables from supplies and services (gross
g) write-downs of receivables from supplies andises
Total receivables from supplies and services (net)

In the majority of contracts signed by the Compahsg, time of payment of receivables for services

was established in the range from 14 to 60 days

Age analysis of overdue trade receivables (gross)

14 584
6 524
33
4508
156

4 550
30 455
-3 305
27 150

31 December 2018

8492
2 607

143
8118
19 360
-4.189
15171

31 December 2017

a) up to 1 month 862 3277
b) above 1 month up to 3 months 54 478
c) above 3 months up to 6 months 419 189
d) above 6 months up to 1 year 172 273
e) above 1 year 3043 3901
Total overdue trade receivables (gross) 4 550 8118
-3 305 -4 189

f) write-downs of receivables from supplies and/ses
Total overdue trade receivables (net) 1245 3929
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As at 31 December 2017 and as at 31 December R@b@, receivables include non-current security
deposits under statutory warranty for construcdod assembly works respectively in the amount of
PLN 5 270 thousand and PLN 99 thousand.

Note No. 10 — Other financial assets

Other financial assets

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
a) from subsidiaries indirectly and directly: - 130
- current loan granted - 130
Total other financial assets - 198
Write-downs of other financial assets 328 207
Other financial assets, gross 328 405

Loans granted - as at 31 December 2018

Increase

* Loan granted to subsidiary Pro-Inhut Sp. z 0. ahm amount of PLN 38 thousand interest
rate set at 3.25% per annum, repayment date 15mimee 2018.

e Calculation of interest on loans granted to Praitnp. z 0. 0. in the amount of PLN 3

thousand.

Decrease
1. Repayment of interest on loans granted to companyirfhut sp. z 0. 0. in the amount of

PLN 4 thousand.
2. Repayment of interest on loans granted to compaoyirfhut sp. z 0. 0. in the amount of

PLN 38 thousand.
3. Write-down of loan granted to company Pro-Inhut 3m. 0. in the amount of PLN 121

thousand.

Loans granted - as at 31 December 2017
e Loan granted to subsidiary Pro-Inhut Sp. z 0. chsmamount of PLN 130 thousand, interest
rate set at 3.25% per annum, repayment date Septe30p2018.

Note No. 11 — other assets

Other assets by type:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
a) prepayments 795 690
- cost of property and personal insurance 267 175
- software maintenance costs 523 499
- subscriptions 2 15
- deferred costs -
- other - 1
Total other assets 795 690
Note No. 12 — Share capital
SHARE CAPITAL (THE STRUCTURE)
Series / Right to
. . Type of share | Number of| emission at Method of Registration  dividend
Series / emission| Type of share . coverage
references shares nominal . date (from the
of capital
value date)
Founding inscribed 3 votes per 1 share 580 580| cash 23-07-1991 01-10-1991
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Founding inscribed 6 816 6 816 cash 23-07-1991 01-10-1991
Founding bearer 1810 104 1810104 cash 23-07-1991 01-10-1991
B inscribed 750 750 cash 29-07-1998 01-01-1993
B bearer 681 750 681 750 cash 29-07-1998 01-01-1993
C bearer 435 000 435000 cash 20-04-1994 01-01-1994
Total number of
shares 2 935 000
Total share capital 2 935 004
Nominal value of 1 share = PLN 1.00

On September 10, 2018, the company Prockeeived the decision of the District Court foe th
capital city of Warsaw in Warsaw, 13th Commerciapartment of the National Court Register on
making the entry in the National Court Register &R
On August 29, 2018, the Court registered changethéoCompany's Statutes resulting from the
resolutions of the Ordinary General Meeting of JAhe2018. The Issuer informs that in pursuance to
the resolutions of the abovementioned Ordinary @Gdndeeting of the Issuer's Shareholders, the
Court registered the reduction of the Company'sesttapital from PLN 3,895,000.00 to PLN
2,935,000.00, i.e. by PLN 960,000 by redemptiof#,000 shares with a nominal value of PLN 1.00
each, which constitutes 960,000 of votes. The stegpéal of the Company currently amounts to PLN
2,935,000.00 and is divided into 2,935,000 shaiiés avsnominal value PLN 1.00 each, giving jointly
the right to 2,936,160 votes.

Total number of votes from all shares is 2 936 160.
Changing the rights from the issuer’s securities
In accordance with information / notifications reegl from shareholders, the Company informs that

as at the date of this report the following shaledns hold at least 5% of votes at the general imget
of shareholders:

Number of % of votes in
Name of the shareholder shares held (in Number of total number % of s_hare
votes held capital
pcs.) of votes

1. Steven Tappan 965 000 965 00d 32.8f 32.88
2.0Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny PZU ,Ztota J@éSie 284 900~ 284 900 9.7( 9.71
3. Fundusze managed by Esaliens TFI including: 168 646** 168 646 5.74 5.75

- Esaliens Parasol FIO 114114 114114 3.89 3.89

- Esaliens Akcji Skoncentrowany FIZ
4. Andrzej Karczykowski 201 882*** 201 882 6.88 6.8213

*) according to the number of shares registereXXXIX AGM of Prochem S.A. on 21.06.2018.
**) information on the number of shares managedtly by Esaliens TFI - notification dated
14.02.2019.
***) information from 18.01.2018. (274 586 of shajeand information from 23.03.2018 (sale of
72 704 shares).
As of 13 June 2017, the Legg Mason TFI fund chantgedame to Esaliens TFI S.A. . The names of
all funds managed by the fund have also changed.

In the period from the submission of the annuabrefor 2017, the Group has received the following
information about the change in the shareholding:

- On June 22, 2018, received from the sharehditerSteven Tappan a notice of a change in the
share held so far as a result of the purchase ®R28 shares of the company Prochem S.A. entitling
to 176 226 votes at the General Meeting. Before dinienge Mr. Steven Tappan held a total of
723 774 shares of Prochem S.A., which constitug&88Ps of the share capital and entitled to 723 774
votes, constituting 18.58% of the total number atieg at the General Meeting of the Company. After
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the change Mr. Steven Tappan holds a total of @@0<$hares of Prohem S.A., which constitute
23.11% of the share capital and entitle to 900 ¥@¥@s constituting 23.10% of total number of votes
at the Company’s General Meeting.

On September 12, 2018 received from Mr. Steverpdaapnformation about the change of
share in equity and voting rights. The change aecuin result of the redemption of 960,000 shares.
After the change, Mr. Steven Tappan exceeded tiestibld of 25% of the total number of votes and
as at the date of publication of the report hold88% of the share capital and 32.87% in the total
number of votes at the General Meeting.

Note No. 13 - Revaluation reserve

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
As at opening balance sheet 107 710
Foreign exchange translation differences 200 -697
Actuarial losses on valuation of provisions for éoype benefits -157 94
Disposal of PPE -493
As at closing balance sheet -343 107

Note No. 14 - Retained earnings

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Spare capital 15797 16 285
Other capital reserve 23344 33005
Profit of the period 1089 12 684
Total 40 230 61974

Note No. 15 — Provision for retirement and similaenefits

The Company implemented the post-employment bengfiigram, which include the retirement and
disability pension gratuity for employees. Reserf@s retirement and disability pension gratuity

payments are calculated on an individual basisefmry employee. The basis for calculating the
provision for employee is the expected amount & lienefit that the Company obliges to pay
according to applicable Regulations of remunerati®atirement and disability pension gratuity is
paid once at the moment of the beginning of ret@ehor disability pension of the person. Current
value of these obligations is determined by an pedelent actuary and revalued. The level of
provisions corresponds with the discounted payméms will be made in the future, taking into

consideration the staff turnover, and relate egériod until the date ending the reporting year.

The principal actuarial assumptions adopted atéhd of the reporting period

Provisions for retirement and disability pensioatgity as at December 31, 2018 were determined
using the individual method using the PUCM methodwlrequired by IAS 19 and using actuarial

techniques. The actuarial assumptions have beeateghdased on the latest historical data of the
Company, current market data and taking into adcoi@anges in the current policy of the Company.
The calculations were based on individual dataropleyees as at December 31, 2018.

Here below are the averaged values of indicatoteraned on the basis of detailed actuarial
assumptions, which were accepted for the calculatfgrovisions as at December 31, 2017:

- weighted average rotation ratio: overall 8.7186Juding for traineeships > 3 years 4.97%
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- weighted average probability of death: 0.002984séd on tables of the Central Statistical Office -
GUS PTTZ - 2017 which were reduced to 40%)

- weighted average probability of total disabili§/002136 (indicators based on the Social Insurance
Office (ZUS) case law for the years 2014 - 2017ckhirere increased to 150%)

- average annual increase in the basis for ben2f@%6

- interest rate used for discounting: 3.25% onlhseis of yields on Polish government bonds with
maturity corresponding to the time length of liglaék, increased by 0.25 percentage point
(discounting factor: 0.968523)

For comparison, the average values of selectedatulis being determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions, which were accepted for the calculatfgrovisions as at 31 December 2017:

- weighted average index of rotation: 8.71%
- average annual increase in the base for caloulafithe retirement and pension benefits: 2%t{fer

years 2018 — 2028)

- interest rate used for discounting 3.25% (distiogrfactor: 0,965158)

Change in provisions for retirement and disabpiénsion gratuity

Description In 2017 In 2017
Opening balance for provisions for benefits 612 838
Benefits paid during the period (-) -115 -177
Interest cost 21 27
Current employment costs (current write-downs) 38 39
Actuarial losses (gains) 157 -115
The cost of past employment 0 0
The effects of the sale / merger of the Companies 0 0
Closing balance for provisions for benefits 713 612
Including current provision 101 140
Including non-current provision 612 472

Burdens of period under retirement and disabileyesance charges being recognized in profit and

loss:
Description In 2018 In 2017
Current employment costs (current write-downs) -38 -39
Interest cost -21 -27
Actuarial gains (losses) under other non-currenebits 0 0
The cost of past employment 0 0
Total gains (losses) -59 -66
Recognized in other comprehensive income:
Description In 2018 In 2017
Actuarial gains (losses) on post-employment besefit -157 115
Breakdown of actuarial gains/losses
Description In 2017
Actuarial gains (losses) ‘ex post’ -117
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Actuarial gains (losses) from the update of deraphic

assumptions 32
Actuarial gains (losses) from the update of friah 8
assumptions

Total actuarial gains (losses) -157

Maturity profile of retirement and disability peasi gratuity (amounts in PLN thousand, duration in
years)

Breakdown of

Period Flows -
provisions
2019 103 101
2020 95 86
2021 108 91
2022 45 37
2023 58 40
> 2024 1403 35¢
Total 1812 713
PV / duration 1158 12.36

Sensitivity analysis of provisions for changes @sib actuarial assumptions

Sensitivity analysis for

Sensitivity analysis for Sensitivity analysis for . : :
. : increases in the basis of
the interest rate employee rotation rates .
benefits
Change Value of Change in  Value of Change Value of
in p.p. provisions % provisions in p.p. provisions
-1,0% 658 -20% 744 -1.0% 772
-0,5% 684 -10% 728 -0.5% 741
0,0% 713 0% 713 0.0% 713
0,5% 744 10% 699 0.5% 687
1,0% 776 20% 685 1.0% 663
Note No. 16 — Non-current loans
Non-current loans
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
a) to subsidiaries indirectly and directly 8 450 950
Total current loans 8 450 950

Loans received — as at 31 December 2018

+ Loan received from subsidiary Elmont Inwestycje 3po. o. in the amount of PLN 7 500
thousand, including: amount of the loan PLN 7 Sf@@usand. The interest rate is set annually
according to rate WIBOR 3M being in force at thed esf each calendar year + 0.5 p. p..
Repayment date was set on 31 December 2021, betarler than repayment of a loan in ING
Bank.

« Loan received from subsidiary Prochem Zachéd Sp.a@ in the amount of PLN 950 thousand,
including: amount of the loan 950 thousand. Theragt rate is set annually according to rate of
3% annually. Repayment date was set on 31 Decell2€, but not earlier than repayment of a
loan in ING Bank.

Increase:
+ Loan received from subsidiary Elmont Inwestycje 3po. o. in the amount of PLN 7 500
thousand. The interest rate is set annually acocgrdi rate WIBOR 6M + margin, being in force
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at the end of each calendar year. Repayment datesetaon 31 December 2018, but not earlier
than repayment of a loan in ING Bank.

e Accrued interest on loan from subsidiary ElImontdstycje Sp. z 0.0. in the amount of PLN
147 thousand.

» Accrued interest on loan from subsidiary Prochemrhdd Sp. z 0.0. in the amount of PLN
29 thousand.

Decrease:
* Repayment of interest on loan from subsidiary Elilowestycje Sp. z 0. 0. in the amount of
PLN 147 thousand.
* Repayment of interest on loan from subsidiary Peattzachdd Sp. z o. o. in the amount of
PLN 29 thousand.

Loans received — as at 31 December 2017
+ Loan received from subsidiary Prochem Zacho6d S$p.a in the amount of PLN 950 thousand,
including: amount of the loan PLN 950 thousand. Triterest rate is set annually at 3% per
year. The repayment date of the loan was set o&dember 2018, but not earlier than
repayment of a loan in Bank ING.

Note No. 17 — Current bank loans

As at As at
31December 2018 31 December 2017

Loans 3830 -

Information on bank loans:

Amount of the Amount of a
. loan according to loan for
Name of the bank Reglfstered agreement repayment Terms of interest The repayment Collateral
office . ! date
(in PLN (in PLN
thousands) thousands)
Promissory note in
blank, pledge by
court on shares in
company
Elektromonta
6,000 WIBOR for O/N .
mBank SA Warsaw Creditin 3830 deposits in PLN + 29 November Krakoyv SA
h 2019 establishing a
overdraft margin
mortgage on real
estate being propert
of company Elpro
Sp.z0.0.in
Krakow.

Note No. 18- Trade payables

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

a) to subsidiaries 1254 1216
- for supplies and services, with maturity: 1254 1216

- up to 12 months 1254 1216

b) ) to associated companies and jointly-controdiatities 12 10
- for supplies and services with maturity: 12 10

- up to 12 months 12 10

c) to other entities 21 457 13 057
- for supplies and services with maturity: 21 457 13 057

- up to 12 months 21 457 13 057
Total trade payables 22723 14 283
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Note No. 19 — Amounts owed to recipients under ranrent agreements

Description 31 December 2018

The value of revenues according to contracts 308 430
The value of revenues being invoiced 200 768
Planned commitments under the implementation ofraots 284 997,
Realized contractual obligations 198 854
Amounts due from recipients 5799
Amounts owed to suppliers 2 863

Note No. 20 —Other liabilities

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
a) to other entities 2 257 1853
- due to taxes, duties, insurance and otbeetits 2242 1837
- due to remuneration - 4
-other (by type) 15 12
liabilities to employees 10 7
to shareholders 5 5
b) other non-current provisions 3850 3998
- provision for loss on contracts 1549 477
- provision for future costs 874 2129
- cost of audit 40 44
- hon-current provision for retirement benefits 101 141
- provision for unused annual leaves 1286 1207
Total other liabilities 6 107 5851
Note No. 21 — Deferred income
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Deferred income, including: 77 1913
- prepayments and advance payments received 77 958
- amounts owed to ordering parties under non-ctirren 955

contracts

- other
Deferred income as at the end of the period, includg: 77 1913
Non-current liabilities 77 1913
Note No. 22 - Revenues from sale of services

Revenues from sale of services (type of service atyge of activity) In 2018 In 2017
- Revenues from sale of services, including: 96 936 49 177
- from related entities 13196 14130
Revenues from sales (territorial structure) In 2018 In 2017
Domestic market 96 936 49 001
- including from related entities 13196 14 130
Exports 138 176
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Revenues under contracts for construction servigeseral contracting) and other services are
presented in Note No. 32 — Operating segments.

The gross amount due from ordering parties/buyarshie work under the contracts was presented in
Note No. 11.

Information on major customers, whose total valfieegenues from sales of services exceeds 10% of
the total revenues which were disclosed in the @mis statement of profit and loss for 2018, is

included in Note No. 32 — Operating segments.

Note No. 23 - Revenues from sale of goods and miite

Revenue from sale of materials (by type of materiadnd type of activity) In 2018 In 2017
- revenue from sale of goods 2 050 -
Revenues from sale of goods and materials (territial structure) In 2018 In 2017
Domestic market 2 050 -
Note No. 24 — Cost of services
Costs by type In 2018 In 2017
a) amortization and depreciation 495 550
b) consumption of materials and energy 753 726
c) outsourcing 74 428 35683
d) taxes and levies 70 55
€) remuneration 19 127 16 477
f) social security and other benefits 3168 2947
g) other types of costs (by category) 2 306 2 497
- property and personal insurance 692 564
- business trips 187 252
- State Fund for Rehabilitation of Disabled Bass(PFRON) 201 207
- cars rental 850 926
- other costs of the Representation Office 23 267
- other 353 281
Total costs by type 100 347 58 935
Change in inventories, goods and accruals and pnegratg -1 345 956
General and administrative expenses (negative yalue -7 895 -7 032
Cost of services 91 107 52 859
Note No. 25 — Other operating income
In 2018 In 2017
a) gain on sale non-financial non-current assets 83 -
b) subsidies - 4
c) reversal of impairment allowance (due to) 113 23
- for receivables 113 23
d) other, including: 3040 85
- reimbursement of litigation costs 385 11
- received compensation, fines and penalties 97 65
- impairment allowance for receivables past due 1871 1
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- other revenues disclosure of asset held fer sal 676 -
- other 11 8
Total operating income 3236 112

Note No. 26 - Other operating expenses

In 2018 In 2017
a) loss on disposal of non-financial non-curresets - 2
b) impairment allowance 298 440
- for receivables 298 440
c) other, including: 496 125
- litigation costs 98 26
- paid damages, penalties and fines 16 19
- own cost of investment property sale 246 -
- other operational costs of the RepresentatitficeD 118 -
- other 18 80
Total operating expenses 794 567
Note No. 27— The result of one-off events
In 2018 In 2017
Received interest from PERN in accordance with atgodgment - 25 082
Amount adjudged from PERN in accordance with a cjuaigment - 6 819
Write-off of inventories - -1 668
Interest paid and settled with PERN - -2 841
The cost of provisions for future liabilities - -476
Costs related to the court proceeding with PERN - -143
The result of event - 26 773

The result on one-off events arose as a resutteo€dmpletion and accounting for of a court cagh wi
PERN S.A. described in note 3thformation on significant proceedings pending befine Court.

Note No. 28 - Financial income

In 2018 In 2017
a) income from dividends and profit sharing 1069 741
- from related entities 1069 741
b) interest on granted loans 684 686
- from subsidiaries 307 307
- from jointly-controlled entities 377 379
c) other interest 40 29
- from other entities 40 29
d) surplus of positive exchange rate differences 32 40
e) other, including: 210 93
- revenues from(under) discounted non-curtiabilities 205 39
- other 5 54
Total financial income 2035 1589
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Note No. 29 — Finance costs

In 2018 In 2017
a) interest on bank loans 43 288
b) interest on loans received 176 181
- for subsidiaries 176 181
b) other interest 3 96
- for other entities 3 96
d) other, due to : 753 1678
- commission on bank guarantees 258 242
- commission on loans 130 127
- costs due to discount of financial assets 206 145
- costs from the write-downs of financial assets 121 1164
- other costs 38 -
Total finance costs 975 2243
Note No. 30 — Income tax
Establishment of the effective tax rate In 2018 In 2017
(in PLN thousands)
Profit for the period 1089 12 684
Income tax 451 2 266
Before tax profit 1542 14 950
Income tax at the applicable rate of 19% 203 2841
Revenues, not classified as tax revenue -203 -1 436
Costs not constituting tax deductible expenses 283 763
Other 78 36
Tax loss outside the Republic of Poland - 62
Income tax 451 2 266

Note No. 31— Additional disclosures to the staternehcash flows

Differences between the amounts established diréaiim the financial statements and presented
disclosed in the statement of cash flows, resolinfia transfer of specified amounts from operating
activity to investing activity and financing actiyi

These relate to the following balance sheet itdmPI(N thousands):

In 2018 In 2017

Change in current receivables -13 904 22 158
Trade and other receivables as at 1 January 16 894 38 042
Receivables under seized security deposits asatuady 726 -
Other assets as at 1 January 690 -
Amounts due under agreements as at 1 January 2 260 4 757
Receivables for sold non-current assets -15 -18
Receivables under income tax -641 -342
Receivables for shares sold -367
Opening balance sheet after adjustments 19914 42 265
Trade and other receivables as at 31 December 27 172 17 620
Receivables under seized security deposits asRe8&émber 63 -
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Other assets as at 31 December 795 2950
Amounts due under agreements as at 31 December 5799 -
Receivables for sold non-current assets -11 -15
Receivables under income tax -641
Closing balance sheet after adjustments 33818 19914
Change in current liabilities (except for borrowings, loans and special funds) 8 271 -7 879
Trade payables as at 1January 14 283 27 139
Other liabilities as at 1 January 5851 5182
Amounts owed under agreements 1683 -
Liabilities under seized security deposits 4 067 -
Provision to retirement benefit obligations -141 -299
Provision to unused annual leaves -1 207 -1 104
Provision to audit of statements -44 -60
Provision to other costs -477 -641
Liabilities under discount non-current liabilities - 249
Loan repayment with interest by offsetting withbliiies - 852
Liabilities to shareholders -5 -8
Opening balance sheet after adjustments 24 010 31310
Exclusion of loan repayment with interest by offiset - -852
Exclusion of iabilities under discount of non-current liabildie - -249
Opening balance sheet after adjustments 30 206 30 206
Trade payables as at 31 December 22 723 18 350
Other liabilities as at 31 December 6 107 5851
Amounts owed under agreements as at 31 December 2 863 -
Liabilities under seized security deposits as ab8tember 3 569 -
Provision to retirement benefit obligations -101 -141
Provision to unused annual leaves -1 286 -1 207
Provision to audit of statements -40 44
Provision to other costs -1 549 A77
Liabilities to shareholders -5 -5
Closing balance sheet after adjustments 32281 22 327
Change in other adjustments as at 31 December -1 437 59
Change in deferred incomeadvances received 77 514
Adjustment of non-current financial assets -1 538 -
Change in deferred income under amounts owed torttexing parties under long-term

contracts - -644
Other 23 189

Note No. 32— Operating segments

Revenues from operations achieved outside of PdExplorts) in the period from January 1, 2018 to
December 31, 2018 amounted to PLN 138 thousandQ(ile% of sales revenue), in the analogous
period of the previous year revenues amounted d P16 thousand (i.e. 0.4% of sales revenue).

Information on major customers of the Issuer, whstlare in the sales revenue for 2018 exceeded
10% of the total sales revenue:

e A customer who deals in the production of chemieall materials — sales revenue PLN
52 616 thousand, representing 53.0 % of sales wveyemhich was shown in the segment
"General contracting" and "Design services andrathgineering services".
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* Irydion Sp. z o.0. jointly-controlled company — eswes in the amount of PLN 13 063
thousand, representing 13.2% of sales revenue,hwhizs shown in the segment "General
contracting" and "Design services and other engingeservices".

* A customer who deals in the construction of indakeind service facilities — sales revenue
PLN 5 123 thousand, representing 5.2 % of salesntey, which was shown in the segment
"General contracting".

e A customer operating in the energy sector — saesnue PLN 5 057 thousand, representing
5.1% of sales revenue, which was shown in the segriieesign services and other
engineering services”.

Detailed data on the activities of Prochem SA ie thdividual segments are shown in the tables
below. Analysis of the revenues and results of @omenpany in the different segments which are
covered by reporting is presented below.

Design
For the year from 1 General services, Rental of Commercial ltems not
January 2018 to 31, contractin other construction activity Other assigned Total
December 2018 9 engineering equipment 9
services
Revenues for external clients 70 606 22823 2130 2 050 1377 - 98 986
Total revenues of the
segment 70 606 22823 2130 2 050 1377 - 98 986
Result
Profit(loss) of the segment 2 267 -4 485 243 94 -79 - -1 960
Financial income R R R - R 2035 2035
Finance costs - - - - - -975 975
Net financial income - - - - - 1060 1060
Profit (loss)on other operating
activities - - - - - 2442 2442
Before tax profit - - - - - 1542 1542
Income tax - - - - - 453 453
Profit for the current period - - - - - 1089 1089
Assets of the segment (
related to activities) 23624 2779 570 676 240 - 27 889
Assets not assigned
/unallocated (among others
shares, stocks and other
financial assets) - - - - - 62522 62522
Total assets 23624 2779 570 676 240 62 522 91 053
Liabilities of the segment
(related to activities) 25261 105 1134 968 - 28 068
Liabilities not assigned - - - - - 20 163 20 163
Equity . . - - - 42822 42822
Total equity and liabilities 25 261 105 1134 0 968 62 985 91 053
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 27 24 93 - - 235 379
Amortization of intangible
assets - - - - - 116 116
Write-downs of segment
assets (receivables from
supplies and services) 296 3061 R 18 R 3305
Design
For the year from1 January to 31 General services, Rental Qf Commercial Items not
: other construction - Other . Total
December 2017 contracting . . B activity assigned
engineering  equipment
services

Revenues 28194 17 461 2515 - 1007 - 46 177
Total revenues of the segment 28194 17 461 2515 - 1007 - 49 177
Result
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Profit of the segment -1 320 -9667 384 - -111 - -10 714
Financial income - - - - - 1589 1589
Finance costs - - - - - -2 243 -2 243
Net financial income - - - - - -654 -654
Profit on other operating activities - - - - - 26318 26318
Before tax profit - - - - - 14 950 14950
Income tax - - - - - 2 266 2 266
Profit for the current period - - - - - 12 684 12 684

Assets and liabilities
Assets of the segment ( related to

o 9 756 5278 699 - 166 - 15899
activities)
Assets not assigned /unallocated
(among others shares, stocks and - - - - 77 613 77 613
other financial assets)
Total assets 9 756 5278 699 - 166 77613 93512
L|a_b|]|_t|es of the segment (related to 17 972 180 332 ) 634 ) 19 118
activities)
Liabilities not assigned - - - - - 8418 8418
Equity - - - - - 65976 65976
Total equity and liabilities 27 465 176 332 - 634 74 394 93 512
Depreciation of property, plant and ) )
equipment 25 26 91 270 412
Amortization of intangible assets - - - - - 138 138
Write-downs of segment assets
(receivables from supplies and -344 -369 -3092 - -384 - -4.189
services)

Information about the geographical areas

Geographical breakdown of sales revenues was piegsgmaccordance with country of the seat of the
ordering party.

1 January-31 1 January-31
December 2018 December 2017
Poland 98 848 49 001
France 138 176
Total sales revenue 98 986 49 177

Geographical breakdown of property, plant and egeit and intangible assets

31December2018 31December2017

Poland 1044 1387

Tota_l property, plant and equipment 1044 1387
and intangible assets

Note No. 33 - Profit per one share
Net profit per share remaining in trading as atidhkance sheet date December 31, 2018 is PLN; 0,37

in 2017 profit amounted to PLN 3.26

Note No. 34 - Profit sharing and loss coverage
The Issuer's net profit for 2017 in the amount bNPL2,684,166.55 According to Resolution No. 15
of the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholderdunfe 21, 2018, was allocated to reserve capital.

Proposed distribution of net profit for 2018
The Management Board of Prochem S.A. proposediteatet profit for 2018 in the amount of PLN
1 088 573.12 will be allocated to reserve capital.
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Note No. 35 - dividends
The Issuer did not pay dividend for 2017.

Note No. 36 - Financial instruments and financiaisk management

36.1 Categories and classes of financial instrument

Financial assets

31 December 2018 Categories of financial instruments
Loans, receivables and
other Total
Classes of financial instruments Note No.
Receivables from supplies and services 9 27 150 27 150
Amounts due from recipients under agreements 20 995 7 5799
Cash 1336 1336
Security deposits constituting collateral 7 1332 1332
Loans granted 7 and 10 37 610 37 610
Total 73 227 73227
31 December 2017 Categories of financial instruments
Loans, receivables and
other Total
Classes of financial instruments nota
Receivables from supplies and services 9 15171 15171
Amounts due from recipients under agreements 20 602 2 2 260
Cash 18 642 18 642
Loans granted 7 and 10 37 162 37 162
Total 73235 73235

Financial liabilities

31 December 2018

Financial liabilities

measured at amortized Total
costs

Classes of financial instruments nota

Loans 18 3830 3830
Borrowings received 16 8 450 8 450
Qér:(e)gmzn(;\;ved to recipients under 20 2863 2863
Liabilities under supplies and services 19 22723 22723
Total 37 866 37 866

31 December 2017

Financial liabilities

measured at amortized Total
costs

Classes of financial instruments nota

Loans 18 - -
Borrowings received 16 950 950
Amounts owed to recipients under 20 1913 1913
agreements
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Liabilities under supplies and services 19 14 283 14 283

Total 17 146 17 146

Impairment allowances of financial assets by class@f financial instruments
(in PLN thousands)

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Classes of financial instruments (3 305) (4 189)
Receivables from supplies and services - (396)
Other receivables (328) (207)
Other financial assets (3633) (4 792)

Impairment allowances of financial assets are ptesein Note® and 10.

Operating lease

The company is a party to the lease agreementficEddpace. The agreement has been classified as
operating lease. It includes additional fees faditamhal services that are settled once a yeart Ren
according to the agreement once a year is sulgealorization according to a Harmonized Index of
Growth of Consumer Goods Price in the European tiindex), which is published two months
before the date of indexation.

Part of leased office space is subleased. The &absublease agreements expire on 31 May 2023.
Over the year in the statement of profit and lass2018 was recognized an amount of PLN 3 346
thousands the cost of fees in 2017 this amountRidE3 491 thousand.

Revenue from sublease is recognized in operaticanie.

Over the year 2018 in the statement of profit ass$ was recognized an amount of PLN 21 thousand
as income from sublease, in 2017 this amount waé P1thousand.

From 18 January 2011, the Company is a party t@gmeement concluded with Toyota Leasing
Polska sp. z 0. o. for rental of passenger carns. Agreement was classified as operating leasefAs
December 31, 2018 47 company's cars were covereshisl contracts.

Over the year 2018 in the statement of profit axsd Wwas recognized an amount of PLN 830 thousand
as a cost of renting cars, and in 2017 889 thalisan

Minimal payments due to hon-cancellable operatiagé agreements are as follows:

Agreement of operating lease, when the Companyeéslessee

In PLN thousands In 2018 In 2017
Up to 1 year 3831 3713
1-5 years 12 193 14 466

More than 5 years - -
Agreement of operating lease when the Company &sltéssor

In PLN thousands In 2018 In 2017
Upto 1 year 17 27
1-5years 53 117

More than 5 years - -
36.2. Financial risk management

The Company’s operations are exposed to the fatiginancial risks:
« credit risk;
« liquidity risk;
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« market risk (including currency risk, interest resk).

Credit risk

The company during its commercial activity condusade of services to business entities with the
deferred payment date, as a result of it may ahserisk of not receiving of amounts due from
contractors for the services provided. The companyrder to mitigate the credit risk manages the
risk through the obligatory procedure of gainingdieg.

Assumed repayment period of amount due associaitbdtie normal course of the sale is 14 - 60
days.

Amounts due from contracting parties are regulantynitored by the financial services. In case of
overdue amounts procedures of the vindication tantesl.

The age analysis of trade receivables, which aeedoe on the end of the reporting period, but seca
of which no impairment occurred, is presented e\

In order to reduce the risk of not recovering theeivables from deliveries and services, the Compan
accepts a collateral from its customers in the fofimamong other: bank and insurance guarantees,
mortgages, promissory notes, as well as securfigsie

For the improvement of the current liquidity, inder to release the receivables, which were being
retained by investors for a proper security for ithelemented contracts, and statutory warranty for
construction work and assembly work, Company grhats guarantees and the insurance guarantee
within the framework of guarantee lines, which wienenched with this purpose.

Credit risk associated with monetary resourcesvatid bank deposits is considered by the Company
as low.

All entities in which the Company deposits its fraenetary resources operate in the financial sector
These include domestic banks and branches of thegfobanks.

Credit risk, resulting from loans granted inside group is considered by the Company to be low, due
to the fact that the loans are designed for a fipguirpose as the purchase of investment propkrty.
some cases when the subsidiary is not fulfilliregabligations under the contracted loans in theg lon
period, the Issuer makes write-down of the valuaihs granted and of interest accrued on the loan
Changes in write-downs of loans granted were ptedéan note 7 and 10.

In the estimation of the Management Board, the osknpaired financial assets is reflected in the
impairment allowances. Information on impairmembwhnces of financial assets is presented in Note
36.1.

Liquidity risk

The Company is exposed to the liquidity risk raéaglfrom the relation of current liabilities to cant
assets.

As at 31 December 2018 and as at 31 December 2@lindex of ratio of current assets to current
liabilities (current liquidity ratio) was respeatiy 1.03 and 1.75

Detailed information regarding loans is disclosedibte No. 18.

Analysis of maturity of the liabilities in Notes 186, 17, 18, 19, 20 and 21.

Market risk
1. Exchange rate risk
Part of contracts of sale of services is conclugith foreign companies in foreign currencies (EURO,

US$). In case of a significant strengthening of tleenestic currency it may adversely affect the
performance of the Company. Partly, this risk isigated in the natural way through the purchase of
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equipment and services necessary for the accompdishof these contracts abroad, as well as through
the purchase of relevant financial instruments.

Exposure to currency risk as at 31 December 2018

Other in Total after

(in PLN thousands) EUR usb NOK PLN translation into PLN

Financial assets

Receivables from supplies and services 50 - - - 215
Amounts due from recipients under agreements 2306 - - - 9916
Cash 230 57 88 6 1247
Total 2586 57 88 6 11378

Financial liabilities

Liabilities under supplies and services 1091 50 - - 4879
Total 1091 50 - - 4879

Exposure to currency risk as at 31 December 2017

(in PLN thousands) EUR USD NOK BYR trans;‘:it;'] ?r':ttir N
Financial assets

Receivables from supplies and services 30 - - - 125

Cash 2 1 88 6 55

Total 32 1 88 6 180

Financial liabilities

Liabilities under supplies and services 641 79 - 11 3191
Total 641 79 - 11 3191

Analysis of sensitivity to currency risk as at 8kcember 2018

Dropin
. Increase in Total impact on the Total impact on
(in PLN thousands) exchange rate before tax profit exchange before tax profit
rate
EUR/PLN 15% 964 15% -964
USD/PLN 15% 32 15% -32
NOK/PLN 15% 6 15% -6
Total impact 1002 -1 002
Analysis of sensitivity to currency risk as at 8kcember 2017
Drop in
- Increase in Total impact on the Total impact on
(in PLN thousands) exchange rate before tax profit exchange before tax profit
rate
EUR/PLN 15% -128 15% 128
NOK/PLN 15% 6 15% -6
Total impact -123 123
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Exposure to currency risk of revenues and expendasng the reporting period
Analysis of the impact of potential change in tteue of financial instruments as at 31 December
2018, on the gross financial result in connectioith vihypothetical change in foreign currency

exchange rates compared to the Polish Zloty / fonat currency.

Revenues in foreign currency, achieved in the enay in the years 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

Average exchange rate Average exchange
currency revenues for sales expenses rate for purchases
(in PLN thousand) 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2017 2017
EUR 360 42 4.2810 4.2294 1319 764 4.2713 4.2361
usDb 1805 - 3.7324 3.9295 721 9 3.6805 3.9862

In the reporting period EURO was the main currency.

Hypothetically assuming that if the Polish zlotyakened / strengthened by 1% against EURO, then
revenues in 2018 would increase or decrease by P4 Mousand, and in 2017 by PLN 2 thousand
which would have an impact on profit before taxjlecosts would increase by PLN 56 thousand in
2018, and in 2017 by PLN 32 thousand.

The above deviations were calculated on the bésistorical fluctuation for particular currenciead
forecasts. Sensitivity of financial instruments faurrency risk was calculated as the difference
between the initial book value and potential boadug of financial instruments at assumed
increase/drop in exchange rates.

For other currencies sensitivity of financial instrents is not material.

4. |Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to the risk of variabilitycash flows under interest rate, which is resgltin
from bank loans based on floating interest rate WRBON (overnight) and loans granted based on
floating rates WIBOR 1M and WIBOR 6M.

Analysis of financial instruments with floating irgrest rates

WIBOR Fixed rate of interest
31December 2018 31 December 2017 31December 2017 DekEmber 2017
Financial assets

Loans granted 30835 30 322 6775 6 726
Financial liabilities

Loan - -

Borrowings received 7 500 - 950 950

Analysis of cash flow sensitivity of financial ingstments with floating interest rate on profit befer
tax

The assumed fluctuations of WIBOR The impact (|n PLN thousands)
31December 2018 31December 2017 31December 2018 &Hmber 2017
increase decline increase decline increase deelin increase decline

Financial assets
+50 base -50 base +50base -50 base

Loans granted point point point point 188 (188) 186 (186)
Financial liabilities
L +50 base -50base +50base -50 base
oan . : . : - - - -
point point point point
Borrowings received +50 base -50 base +50 base ba%s® (42) 42 47) 47
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point point point point

Note No. 37 - Related party transactions, and traosons with key management staff

Related entities include entities controlled andtjp - controlled entities, as well as those onickh
the Issuer has a significant influence and membiekey management staff of the Issuer.

Key management personnel include Members of thepaogis Management Board and Members of
the Company's Supervisory Board.

In 2017, key management personnel and persongddiatkey management personnel, in addition to
remuneration did not conclude other transactiorth the Issuer and the companies from the Capital
Group.

Remuneration paid in 2018 in the Issuer’s entsepto the Members of Management Board:

1. Jarostaw $pniewski PLN 576 thousand
2. Marek Kiersznicki PLN 483 thousand
3. Krzysztof Marczak PLN 458 thousand

Remuneration paid in 2017 in the Issuer’s enteegnsghe Members of the Supervisory Board:

1. Marek Garliski PLN 76 thousand
2. Karczykowski Andrzej PLN 60 thousand
3. Krzysztof Obtoj PLN 60 thousand
4. Marcin Rdzinski PLN 60 thousand
5. Karol Zbikowski PLN 60 thousand

The remuneration on account of serving on the Mamamt Boards and the Supervisory Boards of
companies belonging to the Capital Group paid tonldlers of the Management Board in 2018 have
received the following persons:

1. Jarostaw $pniewski PLN 76 thousand
2. Marek Kiersznicki PLN 86 thousand
3. Krzysztof Marczak PLN 126 thousand

Transactions with affiliated entities, as belowyeveoncluded on market conditions and relate t® sal
and purchase of services, among others - of cangtruand assembly services, and rental services,
as well as granting mutually loans.

Settlements with related entities include receigablrade payables and financial liabilities.
Guarantees and sureties granted to related erdrgegresented in Nno8s.

Reporting period
(in PLN thousands)

from 1 January to 31 December 2018

Financial income Financial income Finance costs —
Purchase of

Sale of services ) — interest on — dividends interest on
services -
loans received loans
Subsidiaries 133 3 552)* 307 1069 176
Jointly-controlled entities 13 067)* 3404 377 - -
and associated entities
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)* - - including purchased electrical services and suppifeelectrical equipment from a subsidiary
ElektromontaKrakéw S.A. in the amount of PLN 3 495 thousand
)** - The sale of services and purchase oWvises in total concern revenues from the jointly
controlled company Irydion Sp. z 0. 0. in Warsaov,the benefit of which is implemented investment
project under the name of "Astrum Business ParkVarsaw.

As at 31 December 2018

Trade Receivables Liabilities under
receivables under loans  Other receivables Trade payables loans granted
granted 9
Subsidiaries 979 18 520 - 1242 8 450
Jointly-controlled entities and 1562 19 090 i 12 i

associated entities

Comparative period
(in PLN thousand)

From 1 January to 31December 2017

Financial income Financial income Finance costs

Sale of Purchase of ) i h
- . — interest on —dividends — interest on
services services .
loans received loans
Subsidiaries 1 097 2 866)* 307 741 181
Jointly-controlled entities and associated 13 033)** 3578 379 . .

entities

)* - including purchased electrical services detivery of electrical equipment from a subsidiary
Elektromonta Krakow S.A. in the amount of PLN 2673 thousand
)** - The sale of services and purchase oWvises in total concern revenues from the jointly
controlled company Irydion Sp. z o. 0. in Warsaw,the benefit of which is implemented investment
project under the name of "Astrum Business ParkiVarsaw.

As at 31 December 2017

Trade Receivables Liabilities under
. under loans  Trade payables Other liabilities
receivables granted loans granted
Subsidiaries 1531 18 450 1707 - 950
Jointly-controlled entities and 6 957 18 713 10 ) )

associated entities

Note No. 38 — Collateral granted and received amhitngent liabilities and contingent assets

As at As at
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Collateral granted

Bank guarantee of good performance and statutorsawiyr 9 553 6 932
Tender guarantee 250 -
Guarantee of reimbursement of advance payment 11 400 1177
Total collateral granted 21 203 8 109

Contingent liabilities
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surety of bills of exchange issued by subsidiag-Rhut sp. z 0. o.

seated in Bbrowa Gérnicza for the benefit of an investor touse the 247 247
claims of the good performance
Total collateral granted and contingent liabilities 21 450 8 356
Collateral received As at As at
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

16 865 3 866
Bank guarantee of good performance
Bill-of-exchange guarantees securing the termsettntract 450 -
Total collateral received 17 315 3 866

Note No. 39— Information on significant proceedinggending before the court

On 22 October 2018 the Management Board of PROCHEM received from their proxy a copy of the
decision of the Supreme Court refusing to takec@orsideration a cassation complaint lodged by thdi®
Prosecutor’'s Office of the Republic of Poland omdEof PERN S.A. from the verdict of the Court of
Appeal in Warsaw, 1st Civil Department of Octob6r 3017.

Note No. 40 - Other explanatory notes to separfancial statements

Statement of changes in the ownership of the isssishares or rights to them (options) by persons
managing and supervising the issuer, in accordaneih the information held by the issuer

As at the date of the separate financial statemegrtsby, according to the statements received, the
following members of the Management Board and tingeBvisory Board held shares of PROCHEM
SA:

- Jarostaw Spniewski — 68,383 units.;

- Marek Kiersznicki — 59,474 units;

- Krzysztof Marczak — 36,908 units;

- Marek Garlaski — 73,996 units;

- Andrzej Karczykowski — 201,882 units;

The nominal value of 1 share is PLN 1.

Information on granting a surety for loan or borromg or guarantees by the issuer or by its
subsidiary — jointly to one entity or to its subsdy, if the total value of existing surety or
guarantee is equivalent to as least 10% of the ex&iequity

In 2017, the Issuer granted a loan to its subsid?ao-Inhut sp. 0. 0. based infowa Gornicza.

Factors which in the opinion of the issuer will haan impact on its financial performance in the
prospect of at least the subsequent quarter

The results of subsequent quarters will mainly dépen the Issuer's possibility to acquire new
contracts for the sale of its services. Big impamt the Issuer's performance will have
commercialization of the office center Astrum Besia Park in Warsaw.

Note No. 41 - Approval of the financial statements

Financial statements of Prochem S.A. for the pefiiom 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 were
approved for issue by the Management Board of rocB.A. on 26 April 2019.
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Signatures of the Members of the Management Board

26 April 2019 Jarostaw iniewski President of the Management Board....................

date first name anthame position

26 April 2019 Marek Kiersznicki Vice Presiut

of the Management Board
date first namel anrname position

26 April 2019 Krzysztof Marczak Vice Presit

of the Management Board
date first name anchamone position

Signature of the person responsible for bookkeeping

26 April 2019 Barbara Audginska-Sawicka Chief Accountant

date first name anchamme position
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